
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members:  Berjis, Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL 
BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS THE 
CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY 
BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE 
WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 2  

 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
 

RECOGNITION 
 

3) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing Colleen McGauley for her 
service on the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors –  
MAKE PRESENTATION 
 

4) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing the winner of the 2018 Kern 
Medical Research Forum – 
MAKE PRESENTATION 

 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
CA 
5) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

May 16, 2017 –  
APPROVE 

 
CA 
6) Proposed retroactive Agreement with The College of American Pathologists (CAP), an 

independent contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of 
CAP eFRM software license and support for the CAP electronic Cancer Checklist from 
June 5, 2018 through June 4, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $35,000 – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 3  

 

 
CA 
7) Proposed Agreement with Cardinal Health, Inc., an independent contractor, containing 

nonstandard terms and conditions, for LeaderNet pharmacy administration services, 
for a term of two years effective upon approval by Cardinal, in an amount not to exceed 
$7,792 – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN AGREEMENT 
WITH CARDINAL HEALTH, INC. AND ANY OTHER DOCUMENT NEEDED TO 
PARTICIPATE IN LEADERNET SERVICES 

 
CA 
8) Proposed Agreement with Cerner Corporation, an independent contractor, containing 

nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of additional modules for the 
Millennium Project, effective June 30, 2018, in an amount not to exceed $3,000,000 
over seven (7) years –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
9) Proposed Agreement with Corepoint Health, LLC, an independent contractor, 

containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of Corepoint Integration 
Engine software license and services for the Millennium Project, for a term of one year 
effective June 20, 2018, in an amount not to exceed $307,150 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
10) Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016-041 with the County of Kern, as 

represented by the County Administrative Office, Kern County Sheriff’s Office, and 
Kern County Probation Department, for the provision of correctional medicine services 
to in-custody inmates and juvenile wards for the period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 
2018, extending the term for two years from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020, in the 
amount of $21,767,469 for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 (revenue) –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
11) Proposed retroactive Agreement with the County of Kern, as represented by the County 

Administrative Office and Kern County Sheriff’s Office, for correctional medicine 
services at Kern County Justice Facility from May 12, 2018 through June 30, 2020, in 
the amount of $8,557,346 for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 (revenue) –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO 
FORM BY COUNSEL 

 
CA 
12) Proposed appointment of Moss-Adams LLC to audit the Kern County Hospital Authority 

Deferred Compensation Plan for Physician Employees – 
 APPROVE 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 4  

 

CA 
13) Proposed Amendment No. 4 to Agreement 1048-2010 with Total Renal Care, Inc., an 

independent contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for acute 
dialysis services for the period December 1, 2010 through November 30, 2019, 
extending the term for two years from December 1, 2019 through November 30, 2021, 
and increasing the maximum payable by $1,100,000, from $2,925,000 to $4,025,000, 
to cover the extended term –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO 
FORM BY COUNSEL 

 
CA 
14) Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employees Scott Cote, as 

Extra Help Clinical Pharmacist; Rosa Martinez, as Extra Help Physician Assistant; 
Debbie Pershadsingh, as Extra Help Administrative Coordinator; and Wedad M. 
Rizkalla, M.D., as Associate-Pediatrics, for the period ending June 30, 2019, or 960 
hours, whichever occurs first, effective July 1, 2018 – 

 APPROVE 
 
CA 
15) Proposed retroactive Agreement with Korchek Technologies, LLC, an independent 

contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of software and 
data migration services, for a term of one year effective upon installation, in an amount 
not to exceed $300,000 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN  
 
CA 
16) Proposed renewal and binding of insurance coverages for hospital professional liability, 

general liability and umbrella/excess liability, excess workers’ compensation and 
employers liability, automobile liability, helipad liability, directors and officers liability, 
employment practices liability, crime, privacy and securing (cyber) liability, premises 
pollution liability, underground storage tank liability, property (building, equipment, 
business interruption, earthquake and flood), employed lawyers liability, and fiduciary 
liability from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019, with option to finance selected 
premiums through IPFS Corporation of California and CSAC-EIA in an amount not to 
exceed $1,528,599 –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN PREMIUM 
FINANCE AGREEMENT AND CERTIFICATE OF INCUMBENCY 

 
CA 
17) Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016-042 with Trans-West Security 

Services, Inc., an independent contractor, for the provision of security services for the 
period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2018, extending the term for two years from July 
1, 2018 through June 30, 2020, and increasing the maximum payable by $3,200,000, 
from $2,412,834 to $5,612,834, to cover the extended term –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 5  

 

CA 
18) Proposed approval of Medical Staff policy and procedure regarding 

Evaluation/Management (E/M) Service Documentation Provided by Students – 
 APPROVE 
 
19) Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Rose Bauer, as 

Extra Help Clinical Pharmacist, for the period ending June 30, 2019, or 960 hours, 
whichever occurs first, effective July 1, 2018 – 

 APPROVE   
 
20) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
21) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
22) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of May 31, 2018 –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
23) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 

Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –  
 
24) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – 
 
25) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee 
organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (Government Code 
Section 54957.6) – 

 
26) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Name of case: Arthur Gray v. 

County of Kern, et al., United States District Court Case No. 1:14-cv-00204-LJO-JLT – 
 
RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, JULY 18, 2018, AT 11:30 A.M. 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 6  

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the 
posting of the agenda.  Any supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an 
open session of any regular meeting that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to 
the meeting will also be available for review at the same location.   

 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 

The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the 
Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, 
or by calling (661) 326-2102. Every effort will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals 
with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative formats. Requests for 
assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 7  

 

22) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF MAY 31, 2018 – 
RECEIVE AND FILE  
 

A) Claim in the matter of Kathryn A. Kodner  
B) Claim in the matter of Laurie Kodner 
C) Claim in the matter of Michael Kodner 
D) Application for leave to file a late claim in the matter of Jennifer Granados 

 
 
 
 

 



Clinical Outcomes of Pharmacist-Led Diabetes Clinic
Presented by: Rajinder (Nikky) Kaur, PharmD
PGY-1Pharmacy Resident
Determine the impact that clinical 
pharmacists have on delivering 
comprehensive diabetes care as defined 
by the National Committee for Quality 
Assurance

Rajinder (Nikky) Kaur PharmD
Department of Clinical Pharmacy
Pharmacy School: Thomas Jefferson University 
College: University of California, Los Angeles 
Hometown: Riverside, CA
Next Stop: Remain in Bakersfield to work in the 
Kern Medical Pharmacy



 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, May 16, 2018 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Directors present:  Berjis, Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Lawson-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Lawson made the motion and Vice Chair McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 

 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
CHERI ANCHETA HEARD REGARDING PENSION SECURITY 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                           
  5.16.18 
 
 

Page | 2  
 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
DIRECTOR BERJIS INVITED THE BOARD MEMBERS TO ATTEND THE 61ST 
ANNUAL RESIDENT AND FELLOWS GRADUATION ON THURSDAY, MAY 31, 
2018 FROM 5:30 PM TO 7:00 PM AT THE BAKERSFIELD MUSIC HALL OF FAME 
 
CHAIRMAN BIGLER EXPRESSED HIS APPRECIATION TO ALL WHO ASSISTED 
WITH THE RESEARCH FORUM 

 
 

RECOGNITION 
 

3) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing the ‘Association of Kern County 
Nurse Leaders - 2018 RN of the Year’ awardees and nominees from Kern Medical – 
MADE PRESENTATION 
 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on 

April 18, 2017 –  
APPROVED 
Lawson-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
CA 
5) Proposed Change Order No. 4 to Agreement 34517 with Black/Hall Construction, Inc., 

an independent contractor, for construction services related to the radiology room 
equipment upgrades, increasing the maximum payable by $25,290, from $249,544 to 
$274,834, to cover the cost of additional services –  

 MADE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER 
SECTIONS 15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVED; 
AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 027-2018; AUTHORIZED CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO APPROVE ANY FUTURE CHANGE ORDERS IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 10% OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE, FOR A 
TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE NOT TO EXCEED $295,871 
Lawson-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                           
  5.16.18 
 
 

Page | 3  
 

 
CA 
6) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 06018 with Clarity Technology 

Partners, LLC, an independent contractor, for technology-related temporary staffing 
and contingent search services, increasing the maximum payable by $300,000, from 
$250,000 to $550,000, to cover the term, effective March 26, 2018 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 028-2018 
Lawson-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
CA 
7) Proposed Contract Supplement to Agreement 276-99 with Change Healthcare 

Technologies, LLC, an independent contractor, for purchase of Horizon Practice Plus 
software and professional services, in an amount not to exceed $650,000, effective 
May 16, 2018 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 029-2018  
Lawson-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
CA 
8) Proposed Amendment No. 5 to Agreement 485-2015 with Mohammed A.S. Molla, 

M.D., a contract employee, for professional medical services in the Department of 
Psychiatry for the period July 14, 2015 through July 13, 2020, increasing the hourly 
rate for after-hours clinic coverage from $125 to $150 per hour, adding short-term 
residential therapeutic program call coverage, and increasing the maximum payable by 
$86,500, from $2,141,284 to $2,227,784, effective June 9, 2018 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 030-2018  
Lawson-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
CA 
9) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 29917 with Abdul-Wahab H. Shararah, 

M.D., a contract employee, for professional medical services in the Department of 
Surgery for the period September 16, 2017 through September 15, 2020, adding 
services as Medical Director of the Laser and Aesthetics Center, and increasing the 
maximum payable by $48,000, from $1,490,000 to $1,538,000, to cover the cost of 
additional services, effective June 1, 2018 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 031-2018 
Lawson-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
CA 
10) Proposed Agreement with Osman M. Tahir, D.O., a contract employee, for professional 

medical services in the Department of Radiology from June 18, 2018 through June 17, 
2020, in an amount not to exceed $1,488,000 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN AGREEMENT 
032-2018 
Lawson-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                           
  5.16.18 
 
 

Page | 4  
 

11) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 

Berjis-McLaughlin: All Ayes 
 
12) Proposed Kern County Hospital Authority operating and capital budget for Fiscal Year 

2018-2019 –  
 APPROVED; REFERRED TO KERN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR 

APPROVAL 
Pelz-Sistrunk: All Ayes 

 
13) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 

McLaughlin-Sistrunk: All Ayes 
 
CA 
14) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of April 30, 2018 –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
Lawson-McGauley: All Ayes 
 
 

ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
McGauley-Sistrunk 

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

15) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
16) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 

 
17) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee 
organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (Government Code 
Section 54957.6) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
18) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: One (1) 

Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice 
of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, an 
accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might result in litigation 
against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs – SEE 
RESULTS BELOW 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                           
  5.16.18 
 
 

Page | 5  
 

 
19) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 

(Government Code Section 54957) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
 
RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
Berjis-Pelz: All Ayes 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Item No. 15 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE (MOTION BY DIRECTOR LAWSON, SECOND BY DIRECTOR 
MCGAULEY), THE BOARD APPROVED ALL PRACTITIONERS RECOMMENDED 
FOR INITIAL APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT, REVIEW AND RELEASE OF 
PROCTORING, REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL PRIVILEGES, CHANGE IN STAFF 
STATUS, AND AUTOMATIC TERMINATION OF PRIVILEGES; NO OTHER 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
Item No. 16 concerning Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or 
taking action on authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) 
– HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 17 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency 
designated representatives: Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated 
staff - Employee organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 
(Government Code Section 54957.6) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 18 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2)) Number of cases: One 
(1) Significant exposure to exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of 
Governors on the advice of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, 
including, but not limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence 
that might result in litigation against the Authority and that are known to a potential 
plaintiff or plaintiffs – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 19 concerning PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION -  
Title: Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957) – HEARD; NO 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 
ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAY, JUNE 20, 2018, AT 11:30 A.M. 
Sistrunk 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                           
  5.16.18 
 
 

Page | 6  
 

 
 
 
/s/ Mona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
 Kern County Hospital Authority 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Agreement with The College of American Pathologists, for the use of the pathology software, eFRM 

 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed agreement with The College of American Pathologists, 
for the purchase of a license to use eFRM.  CAP eFRM™ is a software company that enables pathologists to 
utilize the CAP electronic Cancer Checklist and helps manage workflow, submit pathology reports, and use 
discrete data for surgical cancer specimens. 
 
This structured reporting and documentation workflow known as mTuitive, integrates seamlessly with Cerner 
PowerChart and will assure compliance with required documentation elements for accreditation. 
 
Annual License Fee for 2 Pathologists:    $6,000 
Implementation Services (One Time):    $3,000 
Remote Training:        $1,000 
Travel:            $1,000 estimate per policy 
 
Total:            $11,000 
 
The Agreement is effective on June 5, 2018 and may be terminated with sixty (60) day notice on the third 
anniversary of the effective date, and then each year on the anniversary with a sixty (60) day notice.   
 
The Agreement contains non‐standard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to the 
limitation of indemnity to only Intellectual Property infringement and the absence of a termination without 
cause section.   































 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Agreement with Cardinal Health, Inc. for services related to its Pharmacy Services Administration 

Organization, LeaderNet   
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to sign agreement with Cardinal Health 

and any other document needed to participate in the LeaderNet services  
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed agreement with Cardinal Health, Inc., for services from 
LeaderNET, its Pharmacy Services Administration Organization.  LeaderNET negotiates third party insurance 
contracts for the benefit of Kern Medical’s Outpatient Pharmacies.  Kern Medical’s outpatient pharmacies 
benefit by increased reimbursement rates, larger network coverages, and centralized compliance adherence.  
 
The contract is for 2 years and includes a no‐cause 30‐day termination clause.  The agreement will cost $400 in 
an initial set up fee and $308/month for both Sagebrush and Campus Pharmacies.  The total contract price is 
$7,792 for the 2‐year term.   
 
A few of the affiliations that this Agreement will allow Kern Medical to contract with through Cardinal include 
Medimpact, Caremark, Express Scripts, Prime Therapeutics, and State Medicaid.  
 
The Agreement contains non‐standard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to breach 
notification timelines that do not take into consideration California law, the authorization of Cardinal as the 
attorney in fact for the Kern County Hospital Authority for the purpose of entering into contracts, binding 
arbitration, no indemnification, no ability to review third‐party terms that apply to contracts entered into by 
Cardinal for the Kern County Hospital Authority, no consent to the use of Kern Medical’s name by Cardinal and 
their affiliates, auto‐renewal of the term, and governing law being in Ohio.    



The proposed agreement with Cardinal Health, Inc., an independent contractor is 

available to review in the Administrative Office at Kern Medical. 

 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mt. Vernon Avenue 

Bakersfield, CA  93306 
661-326-2102 

 

 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Agreement with Cerner Corporation for the purchase of additional modules to the Millennium Project 

which is the implementation of the Cerner Electronic Health Record 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed agreement with Cerner Corporation for the purchase 
of additional modules to the Millennium Project. The following modules from Cerner Corporation we propose to 
be added to our Millennium Project scope include: 
 

 American College of Radiology (ACR) Care Select: Decision support for ordering the correct imaging 
studies at the Point of Care. 

 Alaris Pump Interoperability: Software interface for connecting smart pumps to Millennium 

 Ambulatory Reference Lab Network (ARLN) Interface: Software interface connecting Millennium to 
Quest and LabCorp. 

 ARLN for Department of Public Health: A bi‐directional interface connecting the DPH lab with 
Millennium 

 ARLN for Physicians Automated Lab: A bi‐directional interface connecting PAL with Millennium 

 CareVive: A Cancer Care Planning interface for patients and their families supporting our accreditation 
with NCQA 

 Cassette Labeler Interface: A software interface allowing rapid printing of pathology cassette labels. 

 E‐Clipboard: A web‐based Patient Portal tool enabling survey and discrete data collection from any 
mobile or desktop device with a connection to the Internet and secure password. This functionality will 
replace our Tonic Survey tool. 

 Education Training Plan: A comprehensive Cerner‐provided Educational training service including 
Learning Journey’s pre‐educational videos, educational curriculum development, embedded educators 
in our configuration sessions, and 10 Educators teaching role‐based workflows to our staff over the 6 
weeks pre‐go live. 

 E‐Prescribing of Controlled Substances (EPCS): Provides e‐prescribing capabilities for narcotics and other 
controlled substances from within Cerner Millennium. 

 Cerner MDRO Data Load: Provides the Cerner side professional fees for uploading Korchek MDRO data. 

 Premier Pass: An IT Analyst educational tool 

 Single Sign‐On (SSO): A tap and go sign‐on solution utilizing Imprivata software that integrates with 
Cerner Millennium. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
7‐Year Costs: 

 ACR Care Select:      $290,087 

 Alaris Interop:        $209,790 

 ARLN Quest/LabCorp:      $148,800 

 ARLN DPH Acute:      $16,500 

 ARLN DPH Ambulatory:      $98,520 

 ARLN PAL Acute:      $16,500 

 ARLN PAL Ambulatory:      $98,520 

 CareVive:        $135,846 

 Cassette Labeler:      $15,252 

 E‐Clipboard:        $24,750 

 Educational Training:      $308,000* 

 EPCS:          $251,030 

 Cerner MDRO Data Load:    $20,522 

 Premier Pass:        $72,171 

 SSO:          $809,305 
TOTAL          $2,515,593** 

 
*Please note that 10% of the Educational Training Cost ($30,800) is being placed at Cerner’s risk should our 
Providers not achieve 60% CPOE (Computerized Physician Order Entry) by 90 days post go‐live. 
**The initial cost at signing is $1,230,945 with an annual fee of $214,108. 
 
The Agreement contains non‐standard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to possible 
increases in fees throughout the duration of the agreement, assignment of payments with no approval from 
KCHA, fees for cancellation, third‐party terms that apply to provided hardware and software without approval of 
Counsel, and auto‐renewal of term.    



 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 1 of 40 

 

CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7 
 

This Cerner System Schedule is made on June 20, 2018 (“Effective Date”), between 

Kern County Hospital Authority (“Client”) and Cerner Corporation (“Cerner”) 
   
a local unit of government with its principal place of business 
at: 

 a Delaware corporation with its principal place of business at: 

   
1700 Mount Vernon Ave 
Bakersfield, CA  93306-4018, USA 

 2800 Rockcreek Parkway 
Kansas City, MO  64117, U.S.A. 

Telephone:  (661) 326-2000  Telephone:  (816) 221-1024 
 

This Cerner System Schedule includes the sections noted below.  Client agrees to purchase the products and services set forth herein, and 
Cerner agrees to furnish such products and services, upon the terms and conditions of this Cerner System Schedule and the Cerner Business 
Agreement, dated July 01, 2016, between Client and Cerner (the “Agreement”). 
 

• Facilities 

• Scope of Use 

• Payment Terms 

• Term and Termination 

• Solution Descriptions 

• Pass-Through Provisions 

• Assignment of Payments 

• Financial Overview 

• Solutions and Services 

• Additional Terms and Provisions 

• Scope of Services 

• Equipment Delivery 

• Event Activity Report 

• Execution Invoice 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY  CERNER CORPORATION 

By:   By:  

 

(signature) 

  Teresa Waller 

Title: 

(type or print) 

 Title: Senior Director, Contract Management 

Purchase Order #:  
 (if applicable) 

Project Kick-off requested the week of:  
 

 

Client will complete the following upon execution of this Cerner System Schedule: 

Client Invoice Contact:  

Contact Phone #:  

Contact E-mail Address:  
 
Client’s account can be managed online at cerner.com by registering for Cerner eBill.  To gain access to eBill, contact the Cerner Client Care Contact Center at 866-
221-8877 or e-mail ClientCareCenter@cerner.com. 
 

TW2368
Pencil



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 2 of 40 

 

PERMITTED FACILITIES 

 

 
For use and access by these facilities: 

Name Address City 
State/ 
Province 

Zip/Postal 
Code Country 

Kern Medical 1700 Mount Vernon Ave Bakersfield CA 93306-4018 USA 

Camp Owens 14401 Sierra Way Kernville CA 93238-9704 USA 

Correctional Medicine - Central 
Receiving Facility 

1415 Truxtun Ave Bakersfield CA 93301-5215 USA 

Jamison Children's Center 1010 Shalimar Dr Bakersfield CA 93306-5633 USA 

Justice Facility Pharmacy 17801 Industrial Farm Rd. Bakersfield CA 93305-1938 USA 

Juvenile Hall Services 1831 Ridge Rd Bakersfield CA 93305-4119 USA 

Kern Medical Clinic 9330 Stockdale Hwy Ste 210 Bakersfield CA 93311-3615 USA 

Kern Medical Columbus Clinics 1111 Columbus St. 
Ste. 1000, 2000, 3000, 4000, 5000 

Bakersfield CA 93305-1936 USA 

Kern Medical Eye Institute 2920 F Street, Suites B1 & B2 Bakersfield CA  93301-1845 USA 

Kern Medical Foundation 3511 Union Ave Bakersfield CA  93305-2937 USA 

Kern Medical GYN Oncology Clinic 2011 19th St Bakersfield CA 93301-4211 USA 

Kern Medical Marketing 3511 Union Ave Bakersfield CA 93305-2937 USA 

Kern Medical Office Park Drive 5101 Office Park Dr Fl 3 Bakersfield CA  93309-0615 USA 

Kern Medical Reach and GROW Clinics 820 34th St Bakersfield CA 93301-2283 USA 

Kern Medical Stockdale Clinics 9300 Stockdale Hwy., Suites 100 & 
300 

Bakersfield CA 93311-3611 USA 

Kern Medical Surgery Center 9300 Stockdale Hwy Ste 200 Bakersfield CA 93311-3611 USA 

Kern Medical Truxtun Peds 6001 Truxtun Ave Suite 210B Bakersfield CA 93309-0679 USA 

Lerdo - Max-Med Facility 17645 Industrial Farm Rd Bakersfield CA 93308-9520 USA 

Lerdo - Minimum Facility 17635 Industrial Farm Rd Bakersfield CA 93308-9520 USA 

Lerdo - Pretrial Facility 17695 Industrial Farm Rd Bakersfield CA 93308-9520 USA 

Public Services Building (M Street) 2700 M St Fl 2 Bakersfield CA 93301-2374 USA 

 
The parties may add or substitute Permitted Facilities by amending this section, provided Client pays any relevant scope of use 
expansion fees in the section below. 

SCOPE OF USE 

 

 
Scope of Use Limits.  Client will use the following solutions in accordance with the Solution Descriptions and subject to the 
scope of use limits set forth below. 
 

Solution Description 
Scope of Use 

Metric 
Scope of 
Use Limit Scope of Use Metric Description 

iAccess Production 
Environments 

1 Specific to a single Cerner environment onto which 
Cerner licensed software is loaded. 

PathNet Devices 1 Total number of instruments, PCs, handheld devices, or 
other type of devices applicable to the application being 
licensed. 

CARESELECT Content Radiology 
Procedures 

155,400 Total number of annual orderable radiology procedures. 

Carevive Survivorship Each 2 Every one considered separately. 

Cerner Workflow Authentication Users 260 Total number of individuals authorized by Client to use 
the Licensed Software under the Agreement, regardless 
of whether the user is actively using the Licensed 
Software at any given time.  The user is registered in the 
System and has a unique sign-on. 

Reporting & Analytics Package Each 155,400 Every one considered separately. 

Ref. Lab Network for Ambulatory Connection 1 Enabling the discovery of patients and clinical data 
between two disparate sources, (EMR, PHR, state 
networks,  regional networks and other communities etc). 

Reference Lab Network Non-Partner 
Connection 

Connection 2 Enabling the discovery of patients and clinical data 
between two disparate sources, (EMR, PHR, state 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 3 of 40 

networks,  regional networks and other communities etc). 

 
Scope of Use Expansion.  If a scope of use limit is exceeded, Client agrees to pay the additional fees below, which are valid 
for two (2) years after the Effective Date, and thereafter increase at a rate of five percent (5%) per year. 

Solution Description 
Scope of Use 

Metric 
Extending Scope 
of Use Limit by 

Additional 
Licensing Fees 

Additional 
Monthly Support 

Fees 
Additional 

Monthly Fees 

iAccess 
Production 
Environments 

1 200,000 3,333 - 

PathNet Devices 1 9,350 125 - 

CARESELECT Content Radiology Procedures 15,540 - - 323 

Carevive Survivorship Each 1 - - 700 

Cerner Workflow Authentication Users 26 - - 208 

Reporting & Analytics Package Each 15,540 - - 50 
 

 

Scope of use will be measured periodically by Cerner's system tools, or, for metrics that cannot be measured by system tools or 
obtained through industry available reporting sources (e.g. FTEs or locations), Client will provide the relevant information 
(including records to verify the information) to Cerner at least one (1) time(s) per year.  Client agrees that if an event occurs that 
will affect Client’s scope of use (such as acquisition of a new hospital or other new facility), Client will promptly notify Cerner in 
writing of such event no later than thirty (30) days following the effective date of such event so that Client’s scope of use can be 
reviewed.  Any additional fees due under this Section will be payable within sixty (60) days following Client’s receipt of an 
invoice for such fees.  Any additional monthly fees will begin on the date the limit was exceeded, and paid annually (pro-rated for 
any partial month). 

Scope of Use Expansion: Shared Computing Services.  The quantities in the "Solutions and Services" section represent the 
scope of use limits for each service.  If a scope of use limit is exceeded, Client agrees to expand the scope of use at Cerner's 
then-current fees.  Scope of use will be measured periodically by Cerner’s system tools.  Any additional fees will begin on the 
date the limit was exceeded, and paid within 30 days following Client’s receipt of an invoice for such fees. 

PAYMENT TERMS 

 

 
FIXED TECHNOLOGY FEE 

The fees set forth in this Cerner System Schedule for Licensed Software, Support, managed services, subscription services, 
Shared Computing Services, Professional Services, Equipment, Sublicensed Software, Equipment and Sublicensed Software 
Maintenance, and Installation shall collectively be referred to as the “Fixed Technology Fee” or “FTF”.  The FTF shall be payable 
as set forth in the table below.  Cerner will invoice Client for such fees on a quarterly basis on the first day of each quarter, and 
payment for invoices shall be made within 45 days following Client’s receipt of invoice. 

Payment Date Payment Amount 

8/15/2018 $267,657  

11/15/2018 $267,657  

2/15/2019 $267,657  

5/15/2019 $267,657  

8/15/2019 $48,415  

11/15/2019 $48,415  

2/15/2020 $48,415  

5/15/2020 $48,415  

8/15/2020 $48,415  

11/15/2020 $48,415  

2/15/2021 $48,415  



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 4 of 40 

5/15/2021 $48,415  

8/15/2021 $48,415  

11/15/2021 $48,415  

2/15/2022 $48,415  

5/15/2022 $48,415  

8/15/2022 $48,415  

11/15/2022 $48,415  

2/15/2023 $48,415  

5/15/2023 $48,415  

8/15/2023 $48,415  

11/15/2023 $48,415  

2/15/2024 $48,415 

5/15/2024 $48,415 

8/15/2024 $48,415 

10/15/2024 $16,138 

FTF Total $2,103,487  

 

Note : 10/15/2024 Payment is for 1 month only. 

Renewal.  If the managed services (RHO), Licensed Software Support, Shared Computing Services, or subscription services 
are renewed on November 1, 2024, Client shall pay the amounts listed in the table below, or as adjusted, on an annual basis 
upon the anniversary of the Effective Date of this Cerner System Schedule.  The fees may increase on an annual basis for 
scope of use increases and by the change in the All Items Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers; United States City 
Average (“CPI”).  Cerner will invoice Client for fees on the first day of each month, and payment for such fees shall be due upon 
receipt of an invoice. 

Renewal Terms Quarterly Amount * 

Licensed Software Support 
                         

$3,048.24  

Subscriptions 
                         

$20,136.96  

Managed Services 
                           

$7,200.00  

Sublicensed Software Support 
                         

$18,030.00  

Total 
                    

$48,415.20  

  * CPI not factored in 

  
Annual Increases.  Cerner may revise the monthly fees for managed services (RHO), subscription services, application 
services, transaction services, Shared Computing Services, and Licensed Software Support any time following the initial 12 
month period after such fees begin (but no more frequently than once in any 12 month period) by giving Client 60 days' prior 
written notice.  The amount of any increase in the fees shall not exceed the previous calendar year’s percentage increase in 
CPI, plus 1% per annum.  Cerner may also increase the fees at any time during the term if a Cerner third party supplier 
increases the fees to be paid by Cerner, with such increase being limited to the amount of increase in Cerner’s fee to the third 
party supplier. 

 

 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 5 of 40 

TERM AND TERMINATION 

 

 
Software Support.  Support services begin on the Effective Date, and continue until terminated pursuant to the Agreement. 

Equipment and Sublicensed Software Maintenance.  Maintenance warranties, if any, begin on the earlier of installation, or 30 
days after shipment of the equipment and/or sublicensed software.  Maintenance services will continue for an initial term of 
twelve (12) months, or such longer period as set forth in the "Solutions and Services" section of this Cerner System Schedule.  
Maintenance will automatically renew for additional periods of the same duration, unless Client provides Cerner with written 
notification of its intent to terminate maintenance no less than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the then-current period.  
Cerner may terminate maintenance services if Client fails to pay invoices for maintenance.  All unpaid charges for maintenance 
will be immediately due and payable upon such termination.  Client will pay all applicable penalties or fees if maintenance 
services are terminated, then later reinstated. 

Other Services.  All subscription services and Shared Computing Services begin on July 1, 2019, and continue for the term set 
forth in the "Solutions and Services" section.  At the end of the applicable term, each service will automatically renew for 
additional 12 month periods at the rate charged in the final period of the then-current term, unless either party provides the other 
party with written notification of its intent to terminate the relevant service no less than 60 days prior to the expiration of the 
applicable then-current term. 

Managed Services.  All managed services begin on July 1, 2018, and continue for the term set forth in the "Solutions and 
Services" section.  At the end of the applicable term, each service will automatically renew for additional 12 month periods at the 
rate charged in the final period of the then-current term, unless either party provides the other party with written notification of its 
intent to terminate the relevant service no less than 60 days prior to the expiration of the applicable then-current term. 

Premier Pass Package.  The professional services will begin on the date set forth in the Scope of Services section and remain 
in full force and effect for the term set forth therein. 

SOLUTION DESCRIPTIONS 

 

 
Each solution with a Solution Description has a code noted in the "Solutions and Services" section of this Cerner System 
Schedule, and that code can be entered at https://solutiondescriptions.cerner.com to view the Solution Description.  These 
Solution Descriptions are incorporated into this Cerner System Schedule by reference.  In the event a Solution Description is not 
published on Cerner’s website, it may be attached to this Cerner System Schedule. 

PASS-THROUGH PROVISIONS 

 

 
Where pass-through provisions are applicable to third party products and services, these provisions are referenced by a pass-
through code in the "Solutions and Services" section of this Cerner System Schedule, and that code can be entered at 
https://passthroughprovisions.cerner.com/ to view the pass-through provisions.  These pass-through provisions are incorporated 
into this Cerner System Schedule by reference. 

ASSIGNMENT OF PAYMENTS 

 

 
Client agrees that Cerner may assign its interest in or otherwise grant a security interest in payments due pursuant to this 
Cerner System Schedule in whole or in part to an assignee with written notice to Client.  Client will promptly acknowledge each 
assignment or granting of a security interest.  Cerner will continue to perform its obligations under the Agreement following such 
assignment or granting of a security interest. 

 

 

 

 

 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 6 of 40 

SOLUTIONS AND SERVICES 

 

 
 
LICENSED SOFTWARE 

 

Solution Code Description Qty Scope 
One-Time 

Fees 

Monthly 
Support 

Fees 
Solution 

Description Code 
Pass-Through 

Code 
 

Quote:  Instant Access (1-13730901881-R-2) 
  
 

CTP-IATK-SMALL Cerner Instant Access Toolkit (1-249 beds) 1 Production 
Environments 

140,000 2,100 SD100402_01   

 

 

 

Solution Code Description Qty Scope 
One-Time 

Fees 

Monthly 
Support 

Fees 
Solution 

Description Code 
Pass-Through 

Code 
 

Quote:  Solutions (1-13759661838-R-4) 
  

 

PA-22247 Cassette Labeler Interface (Uni-Dir) w/o NiceLabel 1 Devices 9,350 125 PA-22247_05   
 

 

  

SUBSCRIPTIONS 

 

Solution Code Description Qty Scope 
Term 
(Mo) 

One-Time 
Fees 

Monthly 
Fees 

Solution 
Description Code 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  CareSelect (1-13725855730-R-5) 
  

CARESELECT CARESELECT Content 155,400 Radiology 
Procedures 

64   3,232     

REP Reporting & Analytics Package 155,400 Each 64   0     
 

 

 

Solution Code Description Qty Scope 
Term 
(Mo) 

One-Time 
Fees 

Monthly 
Fees 

Solution 
Description Code 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  CareVive (1-13886629641-R-3) 
  

CAREVIVE-
SURVIVE 

Carevive Survivorship 2 Each 64   1,400   100001 

 

 

 

Solution Code Description Qty Scope 
Term 
(Mo) 

One-Time 
Fees 

Monthly 
Fees 

Solution 
Description Code 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  Technology-EPCS (1-13780388787-R-1) 
  

CTP-CERN-
WORKFLOWC 

Cerner Workflow Authentication 260 Users 64   2,080 CTP-CERN-
WORKFLOWC_01 

  

 

 

 

SHARED COMPUTING SERVICES 

 

Solution Code Description Qty Scope 
Term 
(Mo) 

One-Time 
Fees 

Monthly 
Fees 

Solution 
Description Code 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  Solutions (1-13759661838-R-4) 
  
 

PY-27825C HealtheLife: Clipboard Consulting 1 Domain   24,750        
 
 

PA-21046 Ref. Lab Network for Ambulatory 1 Connection 64   325 PA-21040_01    
 
 

PA-21047 RLN for Ambulatory Setup 1 Connection   125,400        
 
 

PA-21050 Reference Lab Network Non-Partner Connection 2 Connection 64   1,070 PA-21050    
 
 

PA-21051 Reference Lab Network Non-Partner Connection 
Setup 

2 Connection   33,000        

 

 

 
MANAGED SERVICES 

  

Solution Code Description Qty Scope 
Monthly 
Range 

Term 
(Mo) 

One-Time 
Fees 

Monthly 
Fees 

Solution 
Description Code 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  Technology - RHO (Explicit Logon) (1-13810791859-R-1) 
  

CFG_CMS CernerWorks 1 Each             

CTS-
RHORECUR 

Remote Hosting (Recurring Fees) 1 Each 1 to 76 76   2,400   10400_MSR 

 

 
 

 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 7 of 40 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

  

Phase Project 
**Bill 
Type Solution Rate Metric Qty Fees 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  CareSelect (1-13725855730-R-5) 
  

1 Clinicals FF FF CareSelect-Integration    16,500   

1 TP NDSC AMT FF CareSelect Services-NDSC led    15,000   
 

  
  
 

Phase Project 
**Bill 
Type Solution Rate Metric Qty Fees 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  CareVive (1-13886629641-R-3) 
  

1 TP Carevive FF FF Carevive Professional Services (fixed fee)    35,046 100001 
 

  
  

Phase Project 
**Bill 
Type Solution Rate Metric Qty Fees 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  Instant Access (1-13730901881-R-2) 
  

1 ATG iAccessFF FF iAccess Services for Pass Thru    6,000   

1 ATG iAccessFF FF Instant Access FollowMe Workflow Services    24,000   

1 ATG SSOFF FF Imprivata Implementation    24,000   

1 ATG SSOFF FF A3 SSO Advanced Authentication Implementation    12,000   
 

  
  

Phase Project 
**Bill 
Type Solution Rate Metric Qty Fees 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  Learning Services (1-13848015199-R-1) 
  

1 EUT, TTT, LearnLab FFS Training (EUT, TTT, Learning Lab)        

   Learning Consultant - PS 110 Hour 2800 308,000   
 

  
  
  

Phase Project 
**Bill 
Type Solution Rate Metric Qty Fees 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  Professional Services (1-13918060973-R-3) 
  

1 RLN FFS PathNet        

   Custom Consulting Services - Consultant 150 Hour 600 90,000   

   Custom Consulting Services - Solution Architect 150 Hour 200 30,000   

1 Consulting FF PathNet    4,752   

1 Data Migration FF Implementation Services    20,522   
 

  
  

Phase Project 
**Bill 
Type Solution Rate Metric Qty Fees 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  Technology-EPCS (1-13780388787-R-1) 
  

1 EPCS Setup FF EPCS Setup    68,750   

1 Workflow Auth Setup FF Cerner Workflow Authentication Setup    13,500   
 

  

Premier Pass Package 

 

Phase Project 
**Bill 
Type Solution Term (Mo.) Metric Qty Fees 

 

Quote:  Learning Services- Premier Pass (1-13906396716-R-1) 
  

1 Premier Pass FF Premier Pass Package 12   72,171 
 

  
 

**FF = Fixed Fee / FFS = Fee For Service 
Professional services pricing is valid until August 22, 2018.  If a Cerner System Schedule is not executed on or before such date, this pricing is considered null and void and will be subject to 
revision.  Cerner will not schedule resources for implementation services until this Cerner System Schedule has been executed by both parties and processed by Cerner. 

 

 
 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 8 of 40 

EQUIPMENT 

 

Line # Solution Code Description Qty Scope 

Unit 
One-Time 

Fees 

Extended 
One-Time 

Fees 
Install 
Fees 

Solution  
Description Code 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  CareFusion - Interop (1-13765628473-R-2) 
  

1 CFN-PD-SUP Per Diem Clinical Support 1 Each     4,000.00   100005 

3 ATE-INSTALL Alaris Technical Environment 
Installation 

1 Each     20,000.00   100005 

 

 

 

Line # Solution Code Description Qty Scope 

Unit 
One-Time 

Fees 

Extended 
One-Time 

Fees 
Install 
Fees 

Solution  
Description Code 

Pass-Through 
Code 

 

Quote:  Instant Access (1-13730901881-R-2) 
  

5 CFG_IMPRIVATA Imprivata Solutions 1 Each           

11 HDW-IMP-60-500 Imprivata Proximity USB Reader - 
HID (Qty 500-1499) 

1,000 Each 80.00 80,000.00     100004 

 

 

 
At the time of the actual order, Cerner may substitute individual equipment items listed above based on availability and technological advancements.  Cerner and Client may also agree to 
replace certain equipment items with other Cerner offerings.  If the substitution items result in an increase in fees, Cerner and Client will discuss the fee increase prior to ordering such items.  
Cerner will not schedule resources for installation until this Cerner System Schedule has been executed by both parties and processed by Cerner. 

 

SUBLICENSED SOFTWARE 

 

Line # Solution Code Description Qty Scope 

Unit 
One-Time 

Fees 

Extended 
One-Time 

Fees 
Install 
Fees 

Monthly 
Support 

Fees 
Solution  

Description Code 
Pass-Through 

Code 
 

Quote:  CareFusion - Interop (1-13765628473-R-2) 
  

2 ACS-CGW-
PLATFORM 

CareFusion Coordination 
Engine - Perpetual 

1 Each 35,000.00 35,000.00       100005 

4 ALARIS-EMR-INT-
IMPL 

Alaris EMR 
Interoperability 
Implementation - Primary 
Site 

1 Each     125,000.00     100005 

5 AL-PIP-IS Alaris Pre-pop of Infusion 
Param w/ Infusion Status 
Interop 

1 Each 166,500.00 166,500.00       100005 

 

 
 

Line # Solution Code Description Qty Scope 

Unit 
One-Time 

Fees 

Extended 
One-Time 

Fees 
Install 
Fees 

Monthly 
Support 

Fees 
Solution  

Description Code 
Pass-Through 

Code 
 

Quote:  Instant Access (1-13730901881-R-2) 
  

8                     

8 VIR-APP OneSign New Virtual 
Appliance 

3 Each 1,895.00 5,685.00       100004 

9 SSO/AM-1500 License: OneSign 
SSO/AM 1,500-1,999 
Users 

1,500 Each 40.00 60,000.00       100004 

10 SSPW-1500 License: OneSign 
SSPW Management 
1,500-2,499 Users 

1,500 Each 8.00 12,000.00       100004 

 

 
 

Line # Solution Code Description Qty Scope 

Unit 
One-Time 

Fees 

Extended 
One-Time 

Fees 
Install 
Fees 

Monthly 
Support 

Fees 
Solution  

Description Code 
Pass-Through 

Code 
 

Quote:  Technology-EPCS (1-13780388787-R-1) 
  

6 CID-EPCS-CW-RA-
200 

CID-EPCS-Cwkflow-
RemoteAccess (200-299) 

260 Each 150.00 39,000.00       100004 

 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 9 of 40 

EQUIPMENT AND SUBLICENSED SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 

  

Line # Manufacturer Part # Description Level of Service Qty 

Initial 
Maint 
Term 
(Mo) 

Extended  
Initial 

Maintenance 
Fees 

On-
going 
Maint 
Term 
(Mo) 

Extended  
Ongoing 

Maintenance  
Fees 

 

Quote:  CareFusion - Interop (1-13765628473-R-2) 
  

6 ISMG-SUP-5YR Integrated Solutions Management & Support 8X5 M-F Phone Support 1 12 29,970.00 48 119,880.00 
 

 
 

  

Line # Manufacturer Part # Description Level of Service Qty 

Initial 
Maint 
Term 
(Mo) 

Extended  
Initial 

Maintenance 
Fees 

On-
going 
Maint 
Term 
(Mo) 

Extended  
Ongoing 

Maintenance  
Fees 

 

Quote:  Instant Access (1-13730901881-R-2) 
  

9 SSO/AM-1500 License: OneSign SSO/AM 1,500-1,999 Users IMP Premium 24x7 M-Su 
Phone Support 

1,500 0 0.00 12 25,200.00 

 

10 SSPW-1500 License: OneSign SSPW Management 1,500-2,499 
Users 

IMP Premium 24x7 M-Su 
Phone Support 

1,500 0 0.00 12 4,860.00 

 

 
 

  

Line # Manufacturer Part # Description Level of Service Qty 

Initial 
Maint 
Term 
(Mo) 

Extended  
Initial 

Maintenance 
Fees 

On-
going 
Maint 
Term 
(Mo) 

Extended  
Ongoing 

Maintenance  
Fees 

 

Quote:  Technology-EPCS (1-13780388787-R-1) 
  

6 CID-EPCS-CW-RA-
200 

CID-EPCS-Cwkflow -200-299 IMP Premium 24x7 M-Su 
Phone Support 

260 0 0.00 12 12,090.00 

 

 
 

 

At the time of the actual order, Cerner may substitute individual technology solutions based on availability and/or technological advancements.  In the event of a substitution, the corresponding 
Maintenance services and fees are subject to change for the substituted items.  If the substitution Maintenance services result in an increase in fees, Cerner and Client will discuss the fee 
increase prior to ordering such Maintenance services 

 

 

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS 

 

 

• Kern Medical will be responsible for all Training & Conversion Support for Dragon  

• Ten percent (10%) of the Professional Services fees for Training (EUT, TTT, Learning Lab) are contingent upon Kern 
Medical Providers meeting 80% CPOE within 60 days of go live.  Only Providers that have completed the end user 
training and attended the favorites fair will be eligible for this metric calculation.  Cerner will invoice Client the remaining 
10% of the Professional Services fees for Training (EUT, TTT, Learning Lab) upon achievement of the metric within 60 
days. 

 

EQUIPMENT AND SUBLICENSED SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE TERMS 

 
 

Maintenance Services for Equipment.  Maintenance services for Equipment are:  (a) initial determination of the source of 
the problem, problem management, critical situation escalation and recovery services; (b) dispatching and coordinating the 
activities of the third party maintenance supplier; (c) communicating with the third party maintenance supplier throughout the 
resolution of the issue; (d) field change orders; and (e) inclusion of Equipment issues in a tracking database.  Maintenance 
services for Equipment do not include consumables. 

 

Maintenance Services for Sublicensed Software.  Maintenance services for Sublicensed Software are:  (a) initial 
determination of the source of the problem, problem management, critical situation escalation and recovery services; (b) 
providing all new versions, modifications, and patches of Sublicensed Software that Cerner is authorized to distribute; (c) 
communicating with third party maintenance providers throughout the resolution of the issue, (d) inclusion of Sublicensed 
Software issues in a tracking database. 

 

Maintenance Renewals.  The initial term for maintenance is set forth in the “Solutions and Services” section of this Cerner 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 10 of 40 

EQUIPMENT AND SUBLICENSED SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE TERMS 

 
 

System Schedule , and automatically renews for additional periods of the same duration, unless Client provides written 
notification of termination no less than 60 days prior to the expiration of the then-current period.  Client will also notify Cerner 
of any Equipment items that are no longer being used by Client, and therefore no longer require maintenance.  Cerner may 
terminate maintenance services if Client fails to pay invoices for maintenance. 

 

Equipment Coverage Levels. 

24x7 M-Su 4 HR.  Monday through Sunday, 24 hours per day, 365 days per year, on-site coverage.  Service effort is 
continuous until problem is resolved.  24x7 4 HR service does not guarantee that service will be completed same day due to 
part availability. 

 

9x5 M-F 4 HR.  Monday through Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM CST, on-site coverage.  Service effort is continuous until problem is 
resolved, excluding country holidays.  On-site coverage does not guarantee that service will be completed same day due to 
part availability. 

 

9x5 M-F Next Business Day.  Monday through Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM CST with the objective of completion the next business 
day. 

 

9x5 M-F Depot.  Monday through Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM CST for service calls.  Equipment is shipped to the manufacturer 
where it is repaired and returned to Client’s facility. 

 

9x5 M-F Advanced Exchange.  Monday through Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM CST for service calls.  A replacement will be shipped 
the next business day and requires return of the replaced equipment within 15 days of receiving the replaced device.  Service 
requests placed after 1 PM CST cannot be guaranteed next business day delivery.  If more than one device is being 
requested for replacement, one will be Advance Exchange and the remaining will be returned on a best effort basis 
depending upon availability of replacements. 

 

Sublicensed Software Coverage Levels.  Service effort is continuous until the problem is resolved. 

24x7 M-Su Phone Support.  Monday through Sunday, 24 hours per day, 365 days per year. 

 

Changes to Maintenance Services.  Changes to maintenance services must be requested in writing by Client, and will take 
effect within 60 days after receipt of a signed change order. 

Technology components can be added to maintenance coverage if they are in good working order.  If a component is not in 
good working order, Cerner can arrange for it to be repaired on a time and materials basis prior to being placed on 
maintenance.  Serial numbers must be provided. 

 

Inventory.  Client will review all Maintenance renewal letters to ensure accuracy, and to avoid charges for uncovered items.  
Client will provide Cerner with any missing or incorrect serial numbers as soon as possible to keep records current.  Client will 
notify Cerner when technology components are replaced. 

 

Upgrades.  Maintenance services do not include hardware/technology updates.  Maintenance services include software 
updates once they become available and have been certified for use by Cerner. 

 

Pricing and Allowances.  Equipment and/or Sublicensed Software maintenance pricing and allowances granted by Cerner 
are confidential and are not to be discussed outside the context of this arrangement.  Allowances are available for multi-year 
maintenance and prepaid terms of one year or greater.  Prices do not include any applicable taxes. 

 

Multi-Year Commitments.  Fees associated with the initial term are deemed prepaid and are non-refundable. 

 

 
 
 
 
 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 11 of 40 

SHARED COMPUTING SERVICES 

 
 

Client Responsibilities.  Client agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations as they relate to its use of 
the Services and its provision of the Services to Users.  Client or its Users must obtain all appropriate and necessary 
authorizations and consents to use or disclose any personally identifiable information in compliance with all federal and state 
privacy laws, rules, and regulations.  Client must have security and privacy policies and procedures in place that govern its 
Users’ ability to access information on or through the Services and to prevent unauthorized access, use, and disclosure of 
personally identifiable information including, but not limited to, protected health information. 

 

Medical Record.  The Services do not constitute a medical record.  Client and its Users are responsible for ensuring that the 
information sent through the Services is incorporated into the applicable patient’s medical record as necessary.  Client 
acknowledges that the health information exchanged by Users may not include the individual’s full and complete medical 
record or history. 

 

Access to Data.  Cerner may use and disclose the Data as necessary to perform, analyze and improve the Services, to the 
extent permitted by law.  Cerner may use and disclose performance and usage data for any purpose permitted by law so long 
as the data does not contain protected health information as defined under HIPAA or Client-specific identifiable information.  
Data means data that is collected, stored, processed or generated through Client’s use of the Services. 

 

Right to Aggregate.  Cerner may use or disclose protected health information, as defined by 45 C.F.R. 160.103, to provide 
data aggregation services as permitted by 45 C.F.R. 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B), including use for statistical compilations, reports and 
all other purposes allowed under applicable law. 

 

De-identify and Use Rights.  Cerner may de-identify protected health information in accordance with the standards set forth 
in 45 C.F.R. 164.514(b) and may use or disclose such data unless prohibited by applicable law. 

 

Information Management Tools.  Client acknowledges and agrees that the Services are information management tools, 
many of which contemplate and require the involvement of professional medical personnel, and because medical information 
changes rapidly, some of the medical information and formulas may be out of date.  Information provided is not intended to be 
a substitute for the advice and professional judgment of a physician or other professional medical personnel.  Client 
acknowledges and agrees that physicians and other medical personnel should never delay treatment or make a treatment 
decision based solely upon information provided through the Services.  Client further acknowledges and agrees that the 
Services are not intended to diagnose disease, prescribe treatment, or perform any other tasks that constitute or may 
constitute the practice of medicine or of other professional or academic disciplines. 

 

Third Party Services.  Certain Services have been developed by Cerner’s third party suppliers (the “Third Party Services”).  
The Third Party Services may be provided under the required terms of the applicable supplier, which will be available on 
Cerner’s website.  Cerner is not liable under this Cerner Sales Order for any damages of any kind or nature related to or 
arising out of Third Party Services.  Cerner does not warrant or provide any indemnities on Third Party Services.  To the 
extent that any third party pass-through provisions contain liability limitations with respect to the Third Party Services, such 
limitations state the total maximum liability of Cerner (and then only to the extent that Cerner can collect from the supplier for 
Client's benefit) and each supplier with respect to the Third Party Services. 

 

 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 
This section defines the service deliverables ("Scope") for the services set forth in this Cerner System Schedule. 

SHARED COMPUTING SERVICES 

HEALTHELIFE CLIPBOARD CONSULTING 
(PY-27825C) 

 
 

Defined Terms • Cerner Technology Center(s) (CTC) means the data center facilities intended to provide 
uninterrupted power and service for Cerner-hosted solutions.  Each CTC is designed to 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 12 of 40 

HEALTHELIFE CLIPBOARD CONSULTING 
(PY-27825C) 

 
 

significantly reduce downtime and operate under supervision 24 hours per day, 7 days per week 
(“24 x 7”), every day of the year.  Cerner will provide the CTC facility space, cooling, power and 
management, infrastructure components, and security required to provide the in-scope 
application services. 

Cerner 
Tasks/Activities 

• Coordinate with Client IT and clinical staff on implementation and project management 

• Educate Client staff on portal administration tools via online meeting tools; using a train-the-
trainer approach 

• Provide a standard testing plan template for use in creation of Client testing strategy 

• Provide best practices guidance to establishing compliance with Clipboard 

• Educate Client team on best practices for achieving high adoption and patient engagement 
 

 • Complete Clipboard build in 1 non-production domain and 1 production domain 

• Implement and configure specific features desired by Client for initial go live, including one or 
more of the following: 

o Secure messaging 

o View of upcoming appointments 

o Clipboard (provides the ability for portal users to submit forms through HealtheLife) 
 

Client 
Tasks/Activities 

• Grant Center front-end and back-end access to domains 

• Perform the following build steps to complete the HealtheLife Clipboard setup: 

o Define and build new document type for patient-provided information 

o Schedule appointment build for Cerner Millennium Scheduling Appointment Book 

o Interface all scheduled appointments, if a third party is used and Client wishes to enable 
clipboard or view of upcoming appointments 

o Build out any additional message center inbox pools used for messaging from the portal 

o Choose existing Workflow MPages or build new Workflow MPages to clipboard reconciliation 

o Add patient-provided submitted data filters to additional Workflow MPages 

o Query and modify codified allergies, immunizations, problems, and procedures available to 
portal users in Clipboard 

o Build new discrete task array (DTAs) for clipboard forms 

o Determine necessary control groups for operations job configuration 
 

 • Plan marketing campaign - occurs in months 1 and 2 of the project 

o Complete pre-launch preparation for consumers, physicians, clinical staff, and support 
personnel 

o Plan internal and external marketing, including communication materials and hosting 
informational session 

o Responsible for production, distribution costs, and Client-specific materials 

• Launch marketing campaign - occurs in month 3 of the project 

o Complete launch for consumers, physicians, clinical staff, and support personnel 

o Execute internal and external marketing, including communication materials and hosting 
informational sessions 

• Conduct system testing - occurs in months 1 and 2 of the project 

o Complete development and execution of a test script, testing, and assist with troubleshooting 
 

 • Review training materials and utilize reference manuals and documentation 

• Provide future ongoing train-the-trainer classes 

• Complete the development, build, testing, implementation, and ongoing maintenance of 
connections from the source system to HealtheLife 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 13 of 40 

HEALTHELIFE CLIPBOARD CONSULTING 
(PY-27825C) 

 
 

• Download and install all applicable HealtheLife packages available at time of implementation and 
thereafter while HealtheLife is utilized by Client as well as procuring additional support for the 
installation, implementation, testing and ongoing maintenance of the required WAS Web servers, 
hardware, and sublicensed software required to connect to HealtheLife 

• Provide all first-tier, User support unless Client contracts with Cerner to provide such support 

• Determine and implement the custom event set necessary for the view 

• Determine and build any custom DTAs desired for clipboard 

• Configure additional MPages for patient-provided components 

• Interface all scheduled appointments if a third party is used and Client wishes to enable Clipboard 
or view of upcoming appointments 

• Configure and manage a Security Assertion Markup Language 2.0 identity management solution, 
providing publicly accessible non-production domain, and is responsible for support related to 
accounts (such as usernames, passwords, and logon issues) 

 

Project 
Assumptions 

• Client domains for the Clipboard build are Cerner Millennium domains 

o No more than 2 domain repoints during the project 

o Multiple domain clients will require additional Cerner Services 

• HealtheLife Clipboard leverages MPages, CareAware Multimedia (CAMM), Cerner Scheduling, 
and Message Center; implementation for these solutions is separate from this Scope and must be 
completed for Clipboard to be utilized 

• Client must satisfy the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act and other requirements 
to aggregate and disclose consumer personal health information 

Data Integration (Applicable to Client-Hosted Clients Only) 

Connectivity • Client is responsible for the requirements set forth herein only when Client does not leverage 
Cerner’s remote hosting services for its Cerner Millennium electronic health record (EHR) 
solutions including: 

o IBM WebSphere Application Server environment set up and configuration 

o Package installation 

o Enterprise archive deployment 

• All Data sent inbound to HealtheLife from an external network will pass through the CTC; 
connectivity will use the existing virtual private network (VPN) connection from Client’s network to 
the CTC 

• Other VPN solutions or network connections to the CTC will be evaluated on a case-by-case 
basis 

• Client will need to provide technical resources whenever possible to assist with the support of the 
VPN 

• Additional hardware and software will be necessary to establish connectivity to Client’s EHR and 
the Cerner-hosted HealtheLife solution; such costs will be incurred by Client, and must be 
installed and configured prior to HealtheLife kickoff 

 

 
 

RLN FOR AMBULATORY SETUP 
(PA-21047) 

 
 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, including but not limited to the scope of use limits set forth in this 
Ordering Document, Cerner grants to Client a non-exclusive, non-transferable right for Client’s employees to use, for the 
Term, the Cerner Reference Lab Network (the “Network”).  The Network is a platform which supports inbound and outbound 
Transmission Control Protocol (TCP)/Internet Protocol (IP) and/or web services connections among healthcare providers and 
laboratories, to allow the exchange of order messages and result messages among the organizations.  Client’s Network users 
shall be limited to Client personnel.  Cerner will provide Client with the implementation services set forth in this Scope, to 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 14 of 40 

RLN FOR AMBULATORY SETUP 
(PA-21047) 

 
 

assist Client in connecting to the Network. 

Cerner retains all right, title and interest in and to the Network and any and all work produced by Cerner including, without 
limitation, the documentation (the “Documentation”), all inventions, creations, expressions, improvements, computer 
programs, source code, specifications, operating instructions and all other documentation, whether patentable or 
unpatentable.  Client may not (i) use the Network except as permitted in this Ordering Document; (ii) translate, modify, 
reverse engineer, decompile or disassemble the Network; (iii) export, rent, lease, assign, enter any timeshare or subscription 
service or make any transfer of the Network; or (iv) remove, obliterate, alter or obscure any copyright and trademark notices 
that appear on or within the Network.  These limitations will survive termination of this Ordering Document for any reason.  
Cerner reserves the right to audit Client’s use of the Network, after reasonable notice and during normal business hours, to 
verify Client’s compliance with the terms of this Ordering Document. 

 

The Network enables organizations to connect disparate systems to coordinate and transmit Reference Lab Interface 
transactions.  The solution allows the exchange of information from the sending system to the service provider system for the 
communication of orders.  The Network will also coordinate the result message traffic back to the sending system. 

Defined Terms • Cerner Technology Center(s) (CTC) means the data center facilities intended to provide 
uninterrupted power and service for Cerner-hosted solutions.  Each CTC is designed to 
significantly reduce downtime and operate under supervision 24 hours per day, 7 days per week 
(“24 x 7”), every day of the year.  Cerner will provide the CTC facility space, cooling, power and 
management, infrastructure components, and security required to provide the in-scope services. 

• Connection means a single clinical data feed from the Network to a receiving system/unique 
database 

• Connection Method means the method by which the Network communicates with a receiving 
system 

• Transaction Type means the type of electronic transaction the Network will use to communicate 
with the receiving system 

 

Technical 
Overview 

• Connection Methods available: 

o Transmission Control Protocol 
(TCP)/Internet Protocol (IP) 

o Hypertext Transfer Protocol Secure 
(HTTPS) 

o Web services 

• Transaction Types available: 

o Health Level Seven International (HL7) 
v2.2, 2.3, and 2.5.1 Lab Reference 
Interface (LRI) 

 

Cerner 
Tasks/Activities 

• Build of a new Connection from Client’s system to RLN; such Connection can be used for 
bidirectional traffic 

• Create inbound Connection on the RLN 

• Complete routing build within the Network based on account numbers 

• Coordinate positive networks (PN) virtual private network (VPN) for secure Connection to the 
CTC, if necessary 

• Build communication (COM) servers within Client’s domain, if Cerner Millennium Client 

• Complete updates to the routing script to route transfer list messages to go outbound via the new 
COM servers, if Cerner Millennium Client 

• Perform the following for foreign system interfaces: 

o Configure external systems outbound (ESO) route script 

o Configure external systems inbound (ESI)/ESO 

o Alias all Reference Lab interface related code sets (excludes 54,72,200, and 14003) 

o Develop and test required modify object and modify original scripts 

o Complete functionality testing 

o Complete bulk testing 

o Perform production readiness 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 15 of 40 

RLN FOR AMBULATORY SETUP 
(PA-21047) 

 
 

o Provide 30 days of post go-live support 

 • Complete build, testing, and validation in 1 non-production domain and 1 production domain (for 
Cerner Millennium) 

• Provide maintenance training 

• Provide trainer-conversion preparation 

• Provide 2-weeks post conversion support from 8 AM-5 PM Central Standard Time unless 
otherwise specified 

• Complete requisition (custom Cerner Command Language) build: 

o Cerner has a custom Ambulatory RLN requisition program available that adheres to Quest 
and LabCorp required requisition formats, in addition to providing a “default” third requisition 
format for all other labs 

o Deployment and configuration of requisition code 

 • Complete custom Ambulatory RLN order validation rules 

o Cerner has a custom Ambulatory RLN order validation rules program available that assists in 
supporting proper lab routing and order activation 

o Deploy and configure Discern rule and code 

• Complete the following optional builds, if requested: 

o Medical Necessity 

▪ This is a function performed by the reference labs for any specimen collected locally in 
the clinic; how this evaluation is done, within or outside of Cerner Millennium, is not 
directed by the labs 

▪ This service can optionally be enabled to function directly within the ordering 
conversation of PowerOrders for physician use, at incremental cost 

o Label Printer(s) 

▪ With specimens being locally collected, Cerner recommends connected label printers be 
in place to allow for printing of specimen labels directly from Cerner Millennium and 
coordination of all critical data elements for patient care, such as accession number, 
patient medical record number (MRN), and Client account numbers 

▪ Any PathNet approved label printer can be utilized 

 • Perform the following additional tasks for HL7 uplift to 2.5.1, if necessary 

o Configure OID processing 

o Configure outbound alias processing and CKI mapping 

o Configure coded field processing when applicable 

o Complete new COM server build to support the LRI profile and any connectivity 
configurations 

o Configure ESO/ESI 

o Complete new development or modification of modify object/original scripts 

o Complete functionality testing 

o Complete bulk testing 

Client 
Tasks/Activities 

• Provide all design decisions 

• Provide the following resources prior to project kickoff: 

o Laboratory manager/director 

▪ Review and approve 

o Laboratory analyst 

▪ Contributor for up to 20 hours per week for 3 months 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 16 of 40 

RLN FOR AMBULATORY SETUP 
(PA-21047) 

 
 

o Clinical manager/physician representation 

▪ Review and approve 

o Ambulatory clinical analyst 

▪ Contributor for up to 10 hours per week project duration 

o Healthcare Information Management (HIM) 

▪ Contributor for up to 10 hours per week 2 months 

o Foreign system interface analyst 

▪ Contributor for up to 10 hours per week 2 months 

o Training coordinator 

▪ Contributor for up to 10 hours per week 1 month 

 • Complete Client build: 

o Provision of Client account numbers with identified reference labs 

o Correlation of reference lab compendiums to existing Client orders and results data 

o Testing support throughout the full project cycle 

o User training materials and resources 

o Event code build and position within the Event Set Hierarchy for view from the Ambulatory 
Flowsheet 

o Personnel and processes in support of unmatched persons and Results Only encounters 
generated in support of Unsolicited Results processes 

o Perform testing 
 

Connectivity • All Data sent inbound or outbound to the Network from an external network will pass through the 
CTC 

o A VPN Connection from the external network to the CTC must be set up utilizing the PN 
managed VPN solution 

• Other VPN solutions or network Connections to the CTC will be evaluated on a case by case 
basis 

• Clients will need to provide technical resources whenever possible to assist with the 
establishment of the VPN, especially for a Client-hosted domain 

 

Project 
Assumptions 

• If Client cannot complete any of the tasks set forth below, Client may purchase additional 
professional services hours at Cerner’s then-current fees for a Cerner resource to complete the 
work; any additional hours may result in additional fees: 

o Client will help Network associates installing and configuring the outbound Connection to the 
Network within Client’s domain 

o Receiving system will install and configure the inbound connection from RLN 

o Sending and receiving systems must coordinate specific values for person, encounter, order, 
and result level data and identifiers 

o Client is responsible for completing any aliasing to coordinate specific values between 
systems 

o Sending or receiving systems must have the ability to execute a person match using a 
person level identifier or a combination of demographic and order details 

• RLN transaction set: RLN connections consist of 4 outbound Transaction Types from an 
ambulatory care domain to the receiving system 

o Discrete general laboratory 

o Report display microbiology 

o Report display atomic pathology 

o Discrete blood bank 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 17 of 40 

RLN FOR AMBULATORY SETUP 
(PA-21047) 

 
 

• The following prerequisites must be met prior to engagement: 

o Code level minimum is 2015.01.19 

o Contracts secured between Client and lab(s) in scope 

• All reference lab account numbers from Quest and LabCorp must be collected by the Client and 
provided to Cerner 

o All insurance data must be present and maintained in Cerner Millennium 

• Resources must be secured from LabCorp/Quest prior to integration testing 

• PathNet General Laboratory is in place and functioning prior to project engagement 

o Additional order build is covered within this project, but in-lab service resources and routing 
are beyond scope 

• Payer organization and health plans must be built in Cerner Millennium 

• All reference labs and clinics in scope are expected to be implemented and taken live on the 
same singular event date 

• Average project duration is 6-9 months, depending on all parties’ availability and scope of 
compendium implementation and testing 

• All activity to occur remotely unless otherwise specified 

• A new Ordering Document will be required if additional tasks beyond those outlined in this Scope 
are requested 

 

 
 

REFERENCE LAB NETWORK 
(PA-21041, PA-21043, PA-21045, PA-21051) 

 
 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, including but not limited to the scope of use limits set forth in this 
Ordering Document, Cerner grants to Client a non-exclusive, non-transferable right for Client’s employees to use, for the 
Term, the Cerner Reference Lab Network (the “Network”).  The Network is a platform which supports inbound and outbound 
TCP/IP and/or web services connections among healthcare providers and laboratories, to allow the exchange of order 
messages and result messages among the organizations.  Client’s Network Users shall be limited to Client personnel.  
Cerner will provide Client with the implementation services set forth in this Scope, to assist Client in connecting to the 
Network. 

Cerner retains all right, title and interest in and to the Network and any and all work produced by Cerner including, without 
limitation, the documentation (the “Documentation”), all inventions, creations, expressions, improvements, computer 
programs, source code, specifications, operating instructions and all other documentation, whether patentable or 
unpatentable.  Client may not (i) use the Network except as permitted in this Ordering Document; (ii) translate, modify, 
reverse engineer, decompile or disassemble the Network; (iii) export, rent, lease, assign, enter any timeshare or subscription 
service or make any transfer of the Network; or (iv) remove, obliterate, alter or obscure any copyright and trademark notices 
that appear on or within the Network.  These limitations will survive termination of this   for any reason.  Cerner reserves the 
right to audit Client’s use of the Network, after reasonable notice and during normal business hours, to verify Client’s 
compliance with the terms of this  . 

 

The Network enables organizations to connect disparate systems to coordinate and transmit Reference Lab Interface 
transactions.  The solution allows the exchange of information from the sending system to the service provider system for the 
communication of Orders.  The Network will also coordinate the result message traffic back to the sending system. 

Defined Terms • Cerner Technology Center(s) (CTC) means the data center facilities intended to provide 
uninterrupted power and service for Cerner-hosted solutions.  Each CTC is designed to 
significantly reduce downtime and operate under supervision 24 hours per day, 7 days per week 
(“24 x 7”), every day of the year.  Cerner will provide the CTC facility space, cooling, power and 
management, infrastructure components, and security required to provide the in-scope services. 

• Connection means a single clinical data feed from the Network to a receiving system / unique 
database 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 18 of 40 

REFERENCE LAB NETWORK 
(PA-21041, PA-21043, PA-21045, PA-21051) 

 
 

• Connection Method means the method by which the Network communicates with a receiving 
system 

• Transaction Type – Specifies the type of electronic transaction the Network will use to 
communicate with the receiving system 

• Reference Lab Network (RLN) Transition means transitioning a point-to-point interface to the RLN 
 

Technical 
Overview 

• Connection Methods available: 

o Transmission Control Protocol 
(TCP)/Internet Protocol (IP) 

o Hypertext Transfer Protocol Secure 
(HTTPS) 

o Web services 

• Transaction Types available: 

o Health Level Seven International (HL7) 

 

Cerner 
Tasks/Activities 

• Build new Connection to RLN from Client’s system; such Connection can be used for bi-
directional traffic 

• Create inbound connection on the RLN 

• Complete routing build within the Network based on account numbers 

• Coordinate positive networks (PN) virtual private network (VPN) for secure Connection to the 
CTC, if necessary 

• Build communication (COM) servers within Client’s domain, if Cerner Millennium Client 

• Complete updates to the routing script to route transfer list messages to go outbound via the new 
COM servers, if Cerner Millennium Client 

• Perform the following for foreign system interfaces: 

o Configure external systems outbound (ESO) route script 

o Configure external systems inbound/ESO 

o Alias all Reference Lab interface related code sets (excludes 54,72,200, and 14003) 

o Develop and test required modify object and modify original scripts 

o Complete functionality testing 

o Complete bulk testing 

o Perform production readiness 

o Provide 30 days of post go-live support 
 

Connectivity • All Data sent inbound or outbound to the Network from an external network will pass through the 
CTC 

o A VPN Connection from the external network to the CTC must be set up utilizing the PN 
managed VPN solution 

• Other VPN solutions or network Connections to the CTC will be evaluated on a case by case 
basis 

• Clients will need to provide technical resources whenever possible to assist with the 
establishment of the VPN, especially for a Client-hosted domain 

 

Project 
Assumptions 

• If any of the assumptions below cannot be completed by Client, additional professional services 
hours may need to be contracted for a Cerner resource to complete the work 

o Client will help Network associates installing and configuring the outbound connection to the 
Network within Client’s domain 

o Sending and receiving systems must coordinate specific values for person, encounter, order, 
and result level data and identifiers 

o Client is responsible for completing any aliasing to coordinate specific values between 
systems 

o Sending or receiving systems must have the ability to execute a person match using a 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 19 of 40 

REFERENCE LAB NETWORK 
(PA-21041, PA-21043, PA-21045, PA-21051) 

 
 

person level identifier or a combination of demographic and order details 
 

 
 

MANAGED SERVICES 

REMOTE HOSTING OPTION (RHO) SERVICES 

 
 

SCOPE OF USE LIMITS 
 

Cerner Solutions.  The managed services fees set forth in the “Solutions and Services” section of this Ordering Document 
are based on the following scope of use limits, and apply only to RHO services for the Cerner solution(s) set forth below: 

 

 
 

Scope of Use Metric Scope of Use Limit 
  

Cerner Solutions to be Hosted Explicit Logon Authentication/LDAP Infrastructure (technology used to support 
communication with Client Active Directory Services) 

  

OTHER SCOPE LIMITS 

Explicit Logon Authentication/LDAP Infrastructure (technology used to support communication with Client Active Directory 
Services) 

• In the event Explicit Logon Authentication/LDAP Infrastructure is required in support of the RHO Services the 
following assumptions would apply. 

• Redundant Domain Controllers in CTC for Client’s Active Directory to facilitate Trust with CernerWorks AD 

• Cerner is responsible for provisioning, implementation, and support (as needed to address systems resources issues 
once contacted by Client) of the domain controllers located in the CTC. 

• Cerner is responsible for following anti-virus protection:  provisioning, service management, and service monitoring  
agents on domain controllers located in the CTC. 

• Client is responsible for administrative management (including desired server monitoring) of the domain controllers 
located in the CTC, and to allow all Cerner-provided agents to be installed and functional. 

• Client is responsible for owning, implementing, and managing all Client domain controllers not located in CTC. 

• Client is responsible for creation and maintenance of all user logins within the Client’s Active Directory domain.  
Maintenance includes group level membership and other security concerns for those users. 

• Cerner’s ability to test, monitor and secure the Active Directory servers requires a permanent domain access 
password, granted by Client to Cerner, with the password known to Cerner.  Cerner will only use this account to 
manage anti-virus monitoring agents.  In the event of a virus or worm detection, Cerner will utilize the account to take 
actions to isolate it.  Should the Client not make the password available to Cerner, the affected server(s) may be shut 
down and any resulting downtime will be excluded from System Availability calculations. 

• Hosting fees do not include implementation services or additional licensing that may be required for single sign-on 
applications or LDAP 

 
  

 
 

General Assumptions 

• The basic roles and responsibilities of Cerner and Client for the Cerner solution hosting will be the same as set forth in 
the Ordering Document originally executed between the parties for RHO services. 

• Solutions will run in Client’s existing production domain being remote hosted by Cerner. 

• Managed services fees do not include Licensed Software, Sublicensed Software, Licensed Software Support, 
Maintenance, or professional services. 

• Cerner provides the Layered Software needed to deliver core RHO services (e.g., OS, middleware etc.). 

 
 

 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 20 of 40 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES 

 
 

Project Duration The following project start date is an estimate and subject to adjustment based upon the Effective 
Date of this Ordering Document.  Cerner requires a minimum of 90 days following the Effective Date 
to accommodate pre-project activities such as planning, staffing, and technology activities.  The 
overall duration of this project (from the “project kick-off” event to the “go-live” event), based on the 
scope of services detailed in this Ordering Document, is expected to be 3 month(s). 

• Estimated project start date:  09/01/2018 
 

Facility 
Implementation 
Strategy 

This Scope assumes the design, build, and conversion of 1 facility utilizing a centralized database 
environment and a single go-live event per phase, converting all solutions in that phase concurrently. 

Go-live will occur at the following facility: 

• Kern Medical 
 

Go Live Support Command Center Support for go-live event.  Cerner will provide 3 days of remote application/technical 
support and troubleshooting for issues logged to the help desk or command center during the go-live 
event.  Client’s super user team will support end users.  After go-live, Cerner will provide remote 
application support until turnover to Cerner’s SolutionWorks division, which occurs within 30 days after 
go-live.  After turnover, all issues will be reported to SolutionWorks. 

 

Cerner Delivery 
Project Team Work 
Space 
Assumptions 

As needed and at Client’s expense, Client will provide to the Cerner project team: a secure Cerner-
assigned office (with door locks); work areas with network connectivity to Client network; and access 
to a network laser printer via a desktop computer with fat client (configured to Cerner’s minimum 
recommended configuration) access to appropriate Client domains and Clients using Citrix access.  
Client agrees to provide this access to each Cerner project team member while on Client site.  
Further, Client will provide a high-speed DSL line or network port through Client firewall for each 
Cerner associate on site to access the Internet/Cerner network using Aventail software, and a phone 
line for each Cerner project team member that is assigned to be on site for more than 16 hours per 
week for at least 10 consecutive weeks. 

 

Client Project 
Team 

Client will identify and make available its project team members within 90 days following the Effective 
Date of this Ordering Document or, if not identified and available within that timeframe, such delay will 
be considered a change in scope, and will require the execution of an Ordering Document setting forth 
the additional work effort and additional professional services fees. 

 

Special Project 
Assumptions 

Modifications to the design and build of the proposed solutions to meet specifications for individual 
facilities will result in additional professional services fees. 

 

Scope of Services The solution implementation scope of services documents the services provided by Cerner during the 
project.  This Scope is based on the latest generally available Cerner Millennium software release, 
project timeline, and use of Consulting Framework, Bedrock, STANDARD content and 
recommendations.  It is also assumed that Client will provide data required to configure the system in 
a Cerner defined format. 

 

STANDARD 
Content 

STANDARD is Cerner’s best practices content and contains items such as orders, forms, rules, 
reports, labels and recommended workflows across several roles and venues.  STANDARD was 
developed by Cerner clinicians and experts and is continually updated based on implementation 
experience, Client input, and industry regulations.  This Scope assumes STANDARD content will be 
utilized without modification unless noted in a particular solution.  STANDARD is available for all new 
and existing Cerner Millennium engagements.  Existing Cerner Millennium clients who are adding new 
solutions will be able to import or build the content into their existing database. 

 

Scope Control • There are controls on scope for the total number of a particular item within certain solution 
sections.  Controls are present for the following reasons:  

o In order to achieve the project timeline with estimated Client project resources 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 21 of 40 

IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES 

 
 

o Recommended use of the system and ease of maintenance long term 

o Maintain standard consulting fees 

• Please note that controls on items are not functional limits of the Cerner Millennium System 

• All requested modifications to this Scope must be evaluated for potential impact to the project 
plan and may result in a longer project timeline, additional Cerner/Client resources, and/or 
additional fees.  Cerner has a scope management process that will be utilized throughout the 
implementation to help keep the project on track. 

 

Cassette Labeler Interface (AP) 
 

Cassette Labeler 
Interface 

• Streamline histology workflow while automating the sending of block information to the labeler 
device 

• Transmit the patient and specimen data electronically to the labeler device 

• Label program is included from STANDARD  

• NiceLabel is a required third party component 
 

RLN Consulting Support 
 

RLN • DCW mapping 

• Full results testing 

• UMPQ and Results Only encounter management, workflow education, testing and build 
consultation 

• Configuration Center results mapping build 
 

LEARNING SERVICES SCOPE 

 
 

Learning Labs 
 

Cerner 
Responsibilities 

• Cerner will deliver end-user training in a learning lab environment for the relevant roles.  Cerner will 
provide 10 certified Millennium trainers to conduct training in a formal classroom environment for 
the relevant roles.  Instructor-led, end-user training will include Cerner Millennium solution and role-
specific workflow content.  Participants are assessed on the content through a formal performance 
assessment.  Cerner will provide the Millennium trainers for 6 weeks to train Client end-users. 

• Total hours for end-user training are calculated at an average of 40 hours per week. Trainers will 
work no more than 9 hours per day.  Trainers will have 40 hours each for project management and 
localization to content. 

• Cerner will work with Client to provide the training service on an agreed upon schedule. 

Client 
Responsibilities 

• Develop a core group of nursing and physician superusers to obtain sustainability post conversion 

• Provide a Learning Management System to track participant attendance and performance 
 

 

Deliverables 
 

• Cerner will present the deliverable(s) listed below for Client to review and approve within 3 business days of receipt 

o End-User Training Agenda 

 

Additional Notes 

 

Change Process • If the deliverable has been created per the accepted design document and Client desires to make 
changes, Cerner will provide a change document defining the issue, scope, work effort to 
complete, effect on delivery timeline, and cost to Client. 

Participation and 
Feedback 

• Client will identify a primary point of contact (POC) for this engagement. 

• Client POC will facilitate the identification of Client resources, response to questions, review and 
acceptance of deliverables, and other requirements agreed to in support of this engagement. 

• Client POC will review and sign acceptance or comment on milestone deliverables within 3 
working days of receipt. 

• Client will provide timely visibility to project detail affecting the learning engagement so that 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 22 of 40 

IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES 

 
 

 

Cerner may provide input and feedback to support the project’s successful execution. 

 

Work 
Environment 

• Client will provide workspace, telephone access, and connectivity to Cerner when on-site in 
support of this engagement. 

• Client will provide appropriate meeting space, projection equipment, and support for events 
conducted in support of this engagement. 

 

Materials • Client is responsible for all production costs associated with materials development including, but 
not limited to, costs related to copying, printing, laminating, binding, and distribution.  Upon 
request, and with adequate notice, Cerner will coordinate production costs. 

• Client is responsible for any work necessary to copy or distribute the implementation support 
materials. 

 

Completion 
Criteria 

• This engagement will be considered complete when the scope of work is completed pursuant to 
this Scope, or when the Agreement is terminated pursuant to the terms set forth therein. 

• Termination, reduction in scheduled resources, and/or reduction in duration of this project 
requires written notification and may be subject to cancellation fees and nonrefundable airfare as 
follows: 

• 14 or more days prior to commencement, no cancellation fee 

• 13-7 days prior to commencement, 20% of fees 

• 7-0 days prior to commencement, 30% of fees 

• Reduction of resources and/or project duration post-commencement, 50% of pro-rated fees 

• Client shall pay all outstanding fees and/or expenses owed to Cerner as set forth in the 
Agreement. 

• Certain reimbursable travel and temporary living expenses, as set forth in the Agreement, will be 
billed to Client as incurred. 

• Requests for additional end-user conversion support days must be submitted to Cerner in writing. 

Assumptions • Cerner will work with Client to provide the following services per an agreed upon schedule. 

• Cerner will provide training services at Client’s facility for a maximum of 9 hours per day, with each 
individual resource being on-site for 4 consecutive days, with 3 consecutive days off free of travel. 

• Cerner reserves the right to reassign resources upon notice to Client if hours fall below an average 
of 28 hours per week. 

• This Scope assumes a previously specified number of end-users will be trained.  If the number of 
users changes significantly from this assumption, Cerner will review available training hours with 
Client and determine if more hours are needed. 

 

Process/Issue 
Decision 

• This engagement includes only the items set forth in this Scope.  A new Ordering Document must 
be executed by the parties if Client requests additional tasks beyond those set forth herein.  In the 
event Client requests additional work effort or otherwise modifies the scope set forth herein, Client 
and Cerner will assess the financial and delivery timeline implications of such changes and will 
work together to reach a mutually agreeable solution.  Jointly, Client and Cerner will discuss, 
document, and request approval regarding fees and delivery implications of additional work effort(s) 
prior to any scope expansion. 

• Open process issues affecting training will be assessed by Cerner following the change process 
documented above.  Client will decide whether to include the identified changes in the learning 
process and accept associated changes in the completion of learning deliverables, or to include the 
content in an internal post go-live revision process. 

 

Training Hours • In the event content development or training estimated time is less than what is stated in this 
contract, Cerner reserves the right to revise the total numbers and/or allocate those hours to assist 
with other overall training efforts for the Cerner implementation as agreed by both parties. 

 

Suspension/ 
Rescheduling 

• In the event Client requests this project be rescheduled or suspended, Client will pay costs for 
hours worked and travel expenses incurred, up to and including the date of shut down.  Additional 
fees may be incurred when the project resumes, including, but not limited to, increased professional 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 23 of 40 

IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES 

 
 

service rates, planning, defining scope, reviewing and documenting completed work, and educating 
new project team members (Client will not incur additional fees if the delay is mutually acceptable 
between Client and Cerner). 

• Client acknowledges that Cerner is not obligated to provide the same project team members that 
were assigned to the project prior to the suspension. 

 

Travel • Resource assignments and travel arrangements, including but not limited to Client site visits, 
require a minimum of 10 calendar days of preparation time from the date this Scope is executed. 

• The professional services fees do not include travel, lodging, per diem, or other out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred by Cerner personnel.  Such expenses will be billed to Client based upon actual 
expenses incurred. 

 

Millennium Standard Integrated Migration Scope 
 

Migration Cerner Responsibilities. 

• Cerner will import up to three data pulls into the Integrated Millennium domain. The first load is for 
non production validation testing, the second load occurs prior to go live in the production domain 
and the last load occurs at go live in the production domain. Files will be imported into (1)Non-
Production and (1)Production domain. 

• Cerner will upload files from the following foregn systems:  

o OpenVista 

• Import will include the following items ffrom extracts provided by the client meeting the Cerner 
Migration Standard Specifications:  

o Multi-Drug Resistant Organisms 

(Clinical Documents does not include Content 360 Image files) 

 
 
Client Responsibilities. 

• Client must provide data from any non-Cerner legacy Electroic Medical Record (EMR) system in 
accordance with the Cerner Migration Standard Specification.  

• Client is responsible for validation of the files that are loaded into the Cerner Integrated Millennium 
Domain. 

• Work any duplicate patients created from the upload of patient demographics from various 
systems. 

• Provide aliasing for all impacted code sets.  

• Validate the implementation and confirm that educational needs for clinicians have been arranged 
prior to go live.  

• Implement change control and freezes as determined during project start up 

• Validate and sign-off on each migration data type in a non-production Cerner Integrated 
Millennium domain before data is uploaded into a production domain 

• Client is responsible for providing dual encrypted hard drive for data exchange. Smaller  test files  
may be passed through Secure File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). Cerner will provide a SFTP upon 
client request.  

 
 
DELIVERABLES 

• Cerner will Import three data pulls into the Integrated Millennium domain. The first load is for non 
production validation testing, the second load occurs prior to go live in the production domain and 
the last load occurs at go live in the production domain. 

 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 24 of 40 

IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES 

 
 

PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 

• Changes to the standard extract specifications are subject to additional professional services 

• Specifications can be found at: 

o https://wiki.ucern.com/display/Ambulatory/Data+Migration+Specification  

• Covers 3 uploads, additional  uploads needed are subject to additional professional services  

• This scope does not include Content 360 data (Images) 

• Travel is not included  
 

 

IACCESS SERVICES FOR PASS THRU 
(CTS-IA-PASSTHRU) 

 
 

Overview • Cerner will ensure a successful enterprise wide implementation of lightweight directory access 
protocol (LDAP) with pass-thru authentication for Cerner Millennium leveraging the Cerner Instant 
Access solution. Cerner has developed a specific methodology to ensure a rapid, successful 
product implementation of this solution. 

• Certain tasks are dependent on the availability of Client technical personnel for verification, 
testing, and knowledge transfer. Cerner will identify those Client tasks at the beginning of the 
project to facilitate scheduling and coordination. 

 

Discovery Process • Identify the enterprise LDAP directory that will be used for Cerner Millennium authentication and 
understand its design and role within Client organization. 

• Identify the various Cerner Millennium environments and/or applications that will utilize LDAP 
authentication. 

• Identify Cerner Millennium users that will authenticate using LDAP authentication. 
 

Knowledge 
Transfer 

• Administrator training 

o Review how the authentication of Cerner Millennium has been configured.  

o Outline the process of requesting support from Cerner. 

• Help desk training 

o A short session with the help desk explaining the new authentication configuration of Cerner 
Millennium, how to resolve common technical problems and who to contact for additional 
support. 

 

Deliverables • Install and configure LDAP with pass-thru authentication for Cerner Millennium on 1 production 
and 1 non-production domain including up to 5 mid-tier Win-Intel servers (i.e. Websphere, Citrix). 

• Provide production domain go-live support (Client responsible for production domain 
configuration). 

• Deliver all applicable documentation. 

• Knowledge transfer. 

Assumptions • For proper knowledge transfer Cerner strongly recommends Client be familiar with the core 
technologies used in this solution (LDAP schema extensions, virtual memory system/advanced 
interactive executive (VMS/AIX) backend administration, certificate services, domain naming 
services (DNS)).  

• A certificate services infrastructure is in place and functioning. 

• A DNS is in place and functioning. 

• All work will be performed at Client location unless otherwise noted or agreed upon. 

• Client code level is either 2005.02.85 or 2007.10 or higher. 

• Two Client active directory domain controllers and 2 Cerner child active directory domain 
controllers must exist at Cerner data center.  Active directory trust between the 2 domains has 
been configured and is functional (remote hosted Clients only). 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 25 of 40 

IACCESS SERVICES FOR PASS THRU 
(CTS-IA-PASSTHRU) 

 
 

• Cerner Millennium and active directory usernames must match. 

 

 
 

A3 SSO ADVANCED AUTHENTICATION IMPLEMENTATION 
(CTS-A3SSO-ADVAUTH) 

 
 

Overview • Cerner provides technical consultation services to implement Advanced Authentication for Cerner 
Instant Access (iAccess) Single Sign-On (SSO) solution.  During this engagement Cerner will 
configure SSO functionality for Advanced Authentication, assist in the deployment of the 
advanced authentication devices, provide administrative training and provide train-the-trainer 
sessions for Client staff responsible for training end users of the Advanced Authentication for the 
SSO solution. 

• Certain tasks are dependent on the availability of Client technical personnel for verification, 
testing, and knowledge transfer. Cerner will identify those Client tasks at the beginning of the 
engagement to facilitate scheduling and coordination. 

 

Discovery Process • Analysis of up to 5 standard workflows.  For each: 

o Identify role and expected use pattern 

o Identify appropriate login method and applicable second-factor of authentication if applicable 
(fingerprint reader, etc.) 

o Identify required identity technologies (proximity badges, Hughes Identification Devices 
(HID), Radio Frequency, etc) 

• Identify advanced authentication methods to be used with SSO 

• Provide a high-level analysis and recommendation regarding the integration of physical and 
system access (if applicable) 

 

Initial 
Configuration and 
Installation 

• Cerner will install and configure the integration Advanced Authentication devices, SSO and Client 
Citrix environment, working with Cerner if Client is a remotely hosted Client 

 

Knowledge 
Transfer 

• Administrator training: 1 day on-site session that focuses on training Client-assigned SSO 
administrator on the architecture overview, SSO policies, software deployment options and 
reporting 

• Help desk training:  training sessions on resolving common technical problems and identifying 
Advanced Authentication resources for technical assistance 

• End user training: Cerner will work with the Client in setting up and scheduling end user 
education sessions that cover the following: 

o End user enrollment for Advanced Authentication Management 

o Changes to expect in current workflows 

o Support path during and after deployment 

System 
Management 
Configuration 

• This phase is the final customization step.  Once a historical set of audit data has been 
established, a series of Client use cases and reporting processes will be identified and 
instrumented as applicable 

• Define Client-specific exception reports 

• Define automated reporting and exception reporting processes 

• Knowledge transfer, including: 

o Definition and setup of automated reporting and exception based reporting 

Advanced 
Authentication 

• Cerner will work with Client IT staff in the deployment & installation of up to 2 forms of supported 
advanced Authentication hardware, such as fingerprint readers, proximity readers and smart card 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 26 of 40 

A3 SSO ADVANCED AUTHENTICATION IMPLEMENTATION 
(CTS-A3SSO-ADVAUTH) 

 
 

Hardware 
Deployment 

readers 

 

Advanced 
Authentication 
Policy Templates 

• Cerner will assist Client IT staff with configuration templates for Advanced Authentication on up to 
5 User policies and up to 5 computer policies 

Advanced 
Authentication 
Education 
Sessions 

• Cerner will assist Client IT staff with enrollment & training sessions for up to 2 groups of users to 
include: 

o End user enrollment for proximity badges 

o End user enrollment for fingerprint biometric 

o What changes to expect in current workflows when Advanced Authentication is used 

o Support path during deployment and after 

Deliverables • Identify up to 5 SSO user policies and 5 computer polices 

• Install and configure Advanced Authentication devices 

• Validate and test the Advanced Authentication solution with production pilot group 

• End user training 

• Help desk training 

• Administrator training 
 

 
 

IMPRIVATA IMPLEMENTATION 
(CTS-IMPRVT-IMP) 

 
 

Overview • Cerner will provide technical consultation services to review the configuration and integrity of the 
Single Sign-On (SSO) environment.  Cerner will review the SSO appliance configuration, 
configure review SSO computer and user policies, review administrative management, and 
review deployed application profiles. 

• Certain tasks are dependent on the availability of Client technical personnel for verification, 
testing, and knowledge transfer.  Cerner will identify those Client tasks at the beginning of the 
project to facilitate scheduling and coordination. 

 

Discovery • Identify any known changes in Client’s technical infrastructure including: 

o Current solutions in the production domain  

o Current technical infrastructure 

o SSO-enabled application upgrades 

o Review enabled users, groups, or any planned rollouts 
 

Assessment • Review appliance configuration, review backup and recovery process. 

• Review security policies: user and computer. 

• Document environment configuration. 

• Review reporting and event notifications. Provide guidance on how to enable or review existing 
reports/events. 

• Discuss Client technical roadmap and how SSO might be impacted.  Ensure awareness to 
technical configuration considerations of any significant environment change (e.g. upgrades: 
application, SSO appliance/agent, Citrix). It is Client’s responsibility to review these technical 
topics and determine how they might impact the existing Client environment. 

• End user training:  

o Cerner will provide knowledge transfer to identified Client trainer.  Client is responsible for 
scheduling and performing end user education sessions that cover the following: 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 27 of 40 

IMPRIVATA IMPLEMENTATION 
(CTS-IMPRVT-IMP) 

 
 

▪ End user enrollment for SSO and self-service password management (if in use by 
Client) 

▪ Changes to expect in current workflows 
▪ Support path during and after deployment 

 

Deliverables • Document appliance configuration 

• Document default policy – user and computer 

• Document deployed applications 

Assumptions • For proper knowledge transfer Cerner strongly recommends Client be familiar with the core 
technologies used in this solution. 

• All work will be performed at Client’s location unless otherwise noted or agreed upon. 

• Cerner may recommend environment changes. If so, Client is responsible for testing and 
implementing. Implementation is not included in this Scope. 

• Client will provide access to SSO environment (e.g. appliances, Citrix servers, desktops, etc.). 
 

 
 

INSTANT ACCESS FOLLOWME WORKFLOW SERVICES 
(CTS-IA-FMA) 

 
 

Overview • Cerner will provide technical consultation services to install and configure FollowMe Workflow of 
Cerner Instant Access solution.  During this engagement, Cerner will work with Client to identify 
the desired workflows of the end users and configure Cerner Instant Access to best suit their 
needs 

• Certain tasks are dependent on the availability of Client technical personnel for verification, 
testing, and knowledge transfer.  Cerner will identify those Client tasks at the beginning of the 
project to facilitate scheduling and coordination 

 

Deliverables • Install and configure iaListener (up to 3 iaListener workflows) 

• Install and configure iaLauncher 

• Configure Imprivata Extension Objects (as needed) 

• Provide knowledge transfer for administrator throughout project duration 
 

Project Kickoff and 
Planning 

• Conduct conference call between information technology (IT) staff, project manager, and Cerner 
to ensure project readiness, define project roles, set expectations, and articulate project 
definition.  Once on-site the project team will review the project plan. 

• Provide weekly project status updates for the first month, bi-weekly thereafter. 

• Schedule status meetings (Cerner and Client project manager) 

Discovery • Identify current end user workflows  

• Analyze up to 3 standard workflows 

o Identify role and expected use pattern 

o Identify appropriate chart management services 
 

Technology 
Implementation 

• Configure new technology for Cerner Instant Access 

o Installation and configuration of iaListener on the XenApp servers 

o Installation and configuration of iaLauncher on the endpoints 

o The following Cerner Instant Access tasks are not included in this Scope 

▪ Installation of WTSLocation as required 
▪ Installation of WTS Advanced Location as required 
▪ Installation of Cerner lightweight directory access protocol (LDAP) as required 
▪ Installation of Cerner pass-through as required 
▪ Installation of advanced authentication as required 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 28 of 40 

INSTANT ACCESS FOLLOWME WORKFLOW SERVICES 
(CTS-IA-FMA) 

 
 

▪ Installation of single sign on (SSO) as required 

• Perform functionality test for each workflow 

• Document results and issues 
 

Assumptions • Client is familiar with the core technologies used in this solution 

• The following Cerner Instant Access tasks are not included in this Scope 

o Installation of WTSLocation as required 

o Installation of WTS Advanced Location as required 

o Installation of Cerner lightweight directory access protocol (LDAP) as required 

o Installation of Cerner pass-through as required 

o Installation of advanced authentication as required 

o Installation of single sign on (SSO) as required 

• All work will be performed at Client facility unless otherwise noted or agreed upon 

• Cerner may recommend environment changes.  Client is responsible for testing and 
implementing.  Implementation is not included in this Scope. 

• Client will provide access to SSO environment (e.g. appliances, Citrix servers, desktops, etc.) 

Estimated Duration • Four weeks 
 

 
 
 
 

CARE SELECT - INTEGRATION 
(SVC-0511928 / CARESELECT-INTEG) 

 
 

Implementation 
Summary 

• Number of production electronic medical record (EMR) instances to be implemented:  1 

• Number of non-production EMR instances to be implemented:  1 
 

Facilities • To ensure the most effective rollout, appropriate EMR instances will be discussed and agreed 
upon by both Cerner and Client. 

 

Project Details • A project kick-off will initiate the project by reviewing the project plan, domain strategy, and 
remaining visits, and discussing any additional items. 

• Cerner will assist in the following portions of the overall project: 

o Joint project management 

o Coordination with National Decision Support Company team 

o Cerner Millennium database build components 

▪ Extraction of Order Catalog 
▪ New fields built and added to the specific Order Entry Formats 
▪ MPages view set up 
▪ Security adjustments 
▪ Rule configuration/assistance 
▪ Cerner Command Language (CCL) script review and compiling steps 
▪ Server maintenance 

o Additional clinical training for trainers, limited to 16 hours of classes 
 

Estimated Project 
Duration 

• 2 - 3 months 

 

Conversion 
Support 

• Cerner will provide conversion support, when applicable, for a maximum of 3 days 

 

 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 29 of 40 

 
 

NATIONAL DECISION SUPPORT COMPANY IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES 
(CareSelect-200SU) 

 
 

Service 
Description 

Phase 0: Pre- Implementation Tasks 

• Contract execution 

• Project team assigned: Build analyst and project sponsor identified 

• Project scope and definition 

o Define High level scope and timeline 

o Define domain migration plan/path 

o Complete questionnaire 

o Define reporting needs 

• Export of CareSelect Imaging procedure mapping 

 

Phase 1: Initial Procedure Mapping 

• Conduct communication, training, and testing strategy meetings  

• If applicable, export PROD values for ‘reason for exam’ field 

• Export PROD procedures from Cerner for mapping process 

• Complete CareSelect Imaging procedure mapping 

• Expert (Client) review of procedure mapping 

 

Phase 2: Non-Prod Setup and Integration 

• Deploy CareSelect Imaging HTML alert 

o Build CCL scripts 

o Setup discern rules – ensure AIX/HP-UX outbound network accessibility 

• Configure CareSelect – web server, data table, and web App – integrate with HTML alert 

• Unit test end-to-end implementation 

• Performance testing 
 

  Phase 3: Testing and Training 

• Unit test most common 10% of procedures 

• End-to-end integration workflow testing 

• Plan migration of build to Cerner production 

• Plan notification to clinicians about upcoming changes 

 

Phase 4: Go-Live Execution & Client Communication 

• Go-Live 

•  Migrate build to production 

• Review orders and decision support session data to confirm successful set up and user adoption 

• 1-2 month(s) post go-live 

 

Post live transition meeting to discuss ongoing support plan 

• Review analytics package for ordering trends 

• Provide feedback to physicians with high rates of inappropriate exams or frequent use of free text 
‘Reason for Exam’ 

 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 30 of 40 

NATIONAL DECISION SUPPORT COMPANY IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES 
(CareSelect-200SU) 

 
 

Supplier 
Responsibilities 

• Provide project plan and define project team roles for Client 

• Initial mapping of Client’s radiology procedures to Client’s radiology procedures to CareSelect 
Imaging radiology procedures, using extract provided  

• by Client 

• Provide instructions for build of the CareSelect Imaging integration 

•  in Cerner 

• Provide assistance to Cerner project team and Client to trouble 

•  shoot issues during configuration and testing 

• Optimization support for both content and workflow 
 

 

Client 
Responsibilities 

• Identify clinical champions for CareSelect Imaging project 

• Provide extract for mapping radiology procedures 

• Perform the necessary build and set up in Cerner 

• Complete the testing plan 

• Communications and notifications for CareSelect Imaging go-live(s) 
 

 
 

EPCS SETUP 
(PS-24500C) 

 
 

Cerner 
Tasks/Activities 

• Perform build and foreign system interface changes, if required, to maintain and enhance e-
prescribe functionality for Electronic Prescribing for Controlled Substances (EPCS) 

• Perform optimization of the discharge order action of up to 10 Order Entry Formats, if required 

• Provide Regulatory Consultant who will perform the following tasks, if needed: 

o Provide guidance and best practices for identify proofing/credentialing 

o Provide expertise and research around state-based pharmacy laws, boards and rules 

o Provide guidance around nomination and approval of access controls (dual factor 
authentication) 

o Provide guidance regarding requirement for ongoing security analysis 

• Build and test EPCS functionality in 1 non-production domain and 1 production domain 

• Create e-prescribe relationships in Bedrock and assign the EPCS service level for up to 100 
providers (as a pilot) 

Client 
Tasks/Activities 

• Obtain a digital certificate generated from a certificate authority (or Client representative) for 1 
non-production domain and for 1 production domain 

• Create remaining e-prescribe relationships in Bedrock and assign the EPCS service level to 
those Security Parameter Index (SPI) relationships 

 

Deliverables • Cerner will provide 1 trainer conversion preparation event 

• Cerner will provide 1 maintenance training event 

• Cerner will provide go-live troubleshooting support which will occur during normal business hours 
(8 AM-5 PM CST) 

 

Project 
Assumptions 

• Client must have the following prerequisites: 

o Required Base Code Level: 2015.01.15, per Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) 
certification letter 

o ePrescribe version 10.6 

o ePrescribe Bedrock Registration Wizard 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 31 of 40 

EPCS SETUP 
(PS-24500C) 

 
 

▪ Providers must have an established relationship via this tool for any location(s) from 
which provider wishes to e-prescribe controlled substances 

o ePrescribe Bedrock Logical Access Control Wizard 

o P2Sentinel version 4.5 or higher 

o CareAware MultiMedia Archive (CAMM) 

o Cerner Workflow Authentication (applicable for Imprivata Confirm ID) 

o Secondary Factor Authentication 

▪ DEA approved devices include, but are not limited to, one-time-password tokens 
 Soft token that supports RADIUS authentication 
 Hard token that supports RADIUS authentication 
 Biometric fingerprint reader (applicable only to Imprivata Confirm ID) 

• Providers who will be utilizing the EPCS functionality must be registered with the Cerner Hub and 
SureScripts via the Bedrock Wizard to obtain a unique SPI for each facility from which they will be 
e-prescribing 

• DEA regulation requires that providers wishing to e-prescribe controlled substance prescriptions 
be both nominated and approved for this service level; this will occur via the Bedrock Wizard and 
will require client input/interaction 

• Cerner’s standard print requisitions have been updated to include the necessary DEA 
components in relation to EPCS; if Client has custom requisitions, Client must make the 
necessary modifications or utilize the services of a specialized team at Cerner 

• All activities will occur remotely 
 

 
 

CERNER WORKFLOW AUTHENTICATION SETUP 
(CTS-CERN-WORKFLOWC) 

 
 

Cerner 
Tasks/Activities 

• Identify Client organizational, clinical, and technical basis including: 

o Current solutions in the current production domain 

o Solutions and sites scheduled to go live through the documented Cerner Millennium solution 
roll-out schedule 

o Authentication requirements specific to Client’s business model 

o Current computing infrastructure 

o Technical initiatives 

• Identify advanced authentication methods to be used 

• Identify existing software distribution technologies 

• Provide a high-level analysis and recommendation regarding the integration of physical and 
system access (if applicable) 

• Produce the project plan consisting of recommended configurations, integrations, and 
technologies as identified  

• Identify Client-defined end-states as defined by Client’s requirements and produce gap-analysis 
and high-level recommendations 

• Manage the project 
 

Deliverables • Install and configure advanced authentication devices and workflow authentication policies 

• Validate and test the advanced authentication solution with production pilot group 

• Provide the following training: 

o Administrator training: conduct a 1 day on-site session focusing on training Client-assigned 
authentication administrator on the architecture overview, authentication policies, software 
deployment options, and reporting 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 32 of 40 

CERNER WORKFLOW AUTHENTICATION SETUP 
(CTS-CERN-WORKFLOWC) 

 
 

o Help-desk training: conduct training sessions on resolving common technical problems and 
identifying advanced authentication resources for technical assistance 

o End-user training: coordinate with Client in setting up and scheduling end-user education 
sessions that cover the following: 

▪ End-user enrollment for advanced authentication management 
▪ Changes to expect in current workflows 
▪ Support path during and after deployment 

 

Project 
Assumptions 

• Client will provide a minimum of 1 workstation per operating system configured with all identified 
applications and accounts for workflow authentication 

• Client is familiar with the core technologies used in Cerner Workflow Authentication 

• All work will be performed at Client’s location unless otherwise noted or agreed upon 
 

 
 

PREMIER PASS PACKAGE 

  
  

TASKS/ACTIVITIES 
  

Client Responsibilities. 
  

● Premier Pass program participation 
○ Identify a primary point of contact (POC) for this engagement 
○ Facilitate the identification of Client resources, response to questions, and other requirements agreed to in the support of this 

engagement 
○ Complete the uLearn WBT for Report Creators and is responsible for pulling any utilization data from the uLearn Reporting Module 

■ Create and manage Cerner.com or uCern account tied to a facility included within the Cerner Sales Order is required for 
electronic enrollment in WBTs 

● On-site courses 
○ Client will identify a primary point of contact (POC) for this engagement 
○ Client POC will facilitate the identification of Client resources, response to questions, and other requirements agreed to in the 

support of this engagement 
○ Client will establish a Cerner.com or uCern.com account that is set to Client/Consultant access level 
○ Additional participants may be added with the approval of the instructor 

■ Any participants over the maximum of 12 (not to exceed 15) will be invoiced above and beyond the Premier Pass package at 
$400 per day, per person 

● Virtual, Kansas City-based, or LINK courses 
○ No more than 2 enrollments are allowed per session 

■ If there are already 2 Client employees enrolled in a particular session, Client has the option of choosing an alternate session, 
or placing the additional employees on the waitlist 

■ If there is still availability 1 week prior to the session start date, Cerner will notify those on the waitlist and enroll them at that 
time 

■ Client is allowed up to 2 enrollments per session, based on session availability; seats are not guaranteed in a session and are 
managed first come, first served 

○ If Client employee receives a failing grade for a course, the employee will be allowed one re-test for that course at no additional cost 
to Client 

■ Client is responsible for any additional re-tests necessary 
○ Test-out options are available for many instructor-led courses; refer to test-out policy in the uCern Project and Technical Team 

training site 
● On-site instructor support 

○ Provide instructor(s) directions from airport to Client facility 3 weeks before event date 
○ Provide building, floor, and room access for instructor(s) upon arrival through appropriate key, badge, passcode, or Client escort 
○ Complete a pre-course checklist to instructor's specifications 

● Classroom Setup 
○ Cerner domain 

■ Provide proper classroom space and facilities 
■ Provide 1 device for each participant and instructor 
■ Ensure devices meet Cerner technical specification guidelines 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 33 of 40 

■ Ensure participants have a cerner.com access for documentation used during class activities 
■ Ensure a whiteboard (with markers and eraser) or easel with a flip chart (and markers) is in the classroom 
■ Provide technical support before, during, and after the event: 
■ Provide audio and visual technical support 
■ Provide device technical support 
■ Provide network technical support 
■ Resolve any technical failures not directly related to Cerner Millennium software 
■ Provide additional materials and/or equipment as identified by Cerner at least 1 week prior to the event 

○ Client domain 
■ Provide proper classroom space and facilities 
■ Provide a Cerner Millennium application domain loaded with the Cerner Millennium basic data set (BDS) (required for the 

entire duration of the class) 
■ It is strongly recommended that no one outside the class use this domain during the duration of the class due to system 

instability caused by class activities 
■ If a BDS domain will not be used, activities and scenarios as presented in the course materials will not match what is seen in 

the domain. If a BDS domain will not be used, the chosen domain must contain test patients and sample reference data 
■ Provide a sample to be used during class for database activity to be permanently added to the database 
■ Ensure all devices are connected to Client's network to run the Cerner Millennium solutions as well as a terminal emulator 

session to connect to the back-end host system 
■ Ensure the instructor device and participant devices are loaded with Microsoft Windows 2000 Professional, XP Professional or 

Windows Vista 
■ Ensure the class has access to a laser printer near the classroom and the classroom devices are configured for this printer 
■ Provide 1 device for each participant and instructor 
■ Ensure the instructor device is connected to a projection device that can project a minimum resolution of 1024x768 
■ Ensure all devices meet the technical specification guidelines provided by Cerner 
■ Ensure each participant has a cerner.com log-on to access documentation used during class activities 
■ Ensure a whiteboard (with markers and eraser) or easel with a flip chart (and markers) is in the classroom 
■ Provide additional materials and/or equipment as identified by Cerner at least 1 week prior to the event 
■ Provide technical support before, during, and after the event: 
■ Provide audio and visual technical support 
■ Provide device technical support 
■ Provide network technical support 
■ Resolve any technical failures not directly related to Cerner Millennium software 

  
DELIVERABLES 

  
  

● Cerner will provide 2 on-site courses with maximum of 1 on-site course scheduled per quarter 
○ Includes TRAIN domain rental for use with on-site courses 

● Cerner will provide additional instructor led courses, including: 
○ Kansas City-based courses, virtual courses, LINK courses, and pre-Cerner Health Conference (CHC) workshops: 

■ Unlimited enrollments during the term; and a maximum of 2 enrollments per session thereafter 
○ Standard web-based training (WBT) 

■ Unlimited 
○ Illuminations sessions, podcasts, webinars, CHC recordings 

■ Unlimited 
○ CHC registrations 

■ Unlimited for basic registration only 
○ Cerner Certified Trainer Program 

■ Two enrollments per Premier Pass term, no more than 2 enrollments are allowed per session, late cancellation fees will apply 
● Web based training (WBT) courses will be hosted on uLearn: 

  
PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 

  
  

● The term of the Premier Pass package will begin on July 1st, 2018 through June 30th, 2019 
● All courses allotted must be scheduled and delivered within the terms of the contract 
● It is Client's responsibility to request on-site courses and to manage all instructor-led enrollments, including virtual and LINK events to 

ensure all are completed by the end of the contract term 
● The following facilities are included in the Premier Pass package. All employees located at this facility are covered under the Premier 

Pass package. Facilities not listed below are not included in the scope of work set forth in this Scope: 
○ Kern Medical Center and all Permitted Facilities from Cerner System Schedule No. 3. 

● All deliverables remain the sole and exclusive property of Cerner and may only be used as explained herein 
● Standard Cerner Millennium WBT and instructor-led courses are included in the Premier Pass package, except the following: 

○ Cerner: MillenniumObjects Fundamentals WBT 
○ Cerner: Cerner MillenniumObjects Advanced Concepts 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 34 of 40 

● Custom courses are excluded from the Premier Pass package. Custom courses may include, but are not limited to, those conducted by 
Cerner Ambulatory, CernerWorks and Cerner agile business units, such as MPages, PowerInsight, CareCompass, Physician Architect 
Program, and CDRC Pre-Implementation Workshop. 

● Courses containing content provided by acquired companies are excluded from the Premier Pass package, which includes the 
following: Anasazi, BeyondNow, Clairvia, CoPathPlus, InterMedHx, Labotics, Pure Wellness, Soarian, and any future acquisitions 

● Enrollment in all instructor-led courses is limited and determined on a first come, first served basis 
● Course availability and location listed in the uLearn application is subject to change. If courses are obsoleted during the contract term, 

these courses will no longer be available during the contract term. As new standard Cerner Millennium courses and WBTs are added to 
the Course Catalog, they will become available to Client. Client may use the standard WBTs identified herein to its intended audiences 
within Client's facilities covered under the Premier Pass package. Client may not sell or otherwise distribute the WBTs to any parties or 
facilities not named herein 

● Cerner instructor travel expenses for on-site courses are additional to the Premier Pass package and will be invoiced to Client 
● Participant travel expenses to Cerner sponsored events are additional to the Premier Pass package and are to be paid by Client 
● Cancellation Policies and Fees 

○ Premier Pass package cancellation policy: 
■ Client must notify their Cerner representative to renew their Premier Pass package at the end of the specified term. Notice of 

cancellation is not necessary, as the package will not be automatically renewed 
○ Course cancellation policy: 

■ All courses are subject to schedule change. Cerner has the right to change delivery method or cancel a course 
■ Enrollment cancellation: To avoid penalties, cancellations (made by the participant or the participant's organization) must be 

received via email to cliented@cerner.com 21 business days prior to course start date. Participant substitutions are allowed, 
provided the replacement has met all prerequisites for that course and notification for enrollment has been received at 
cliented@cerner.com 

■ Cerner advises participants refrain from booking travel until 21 business days prior to event. If participant chooses to purchase 
airfare prior to recommended date, it is suggested participant purchase a refundable airline ticket. Cerner will not be held 
responsible for any charges or fees incurred by participant due to course delivery or scheduling changes initiated prior to 21 
days of the event start date 

■ Action: 21 or more days prior to commencement 
■ Cancellation Fee: $0 

■ Action: 20-8 days prior to commencement 
■ Cancellation Fee: 50% of total individual cancelled course fees 

■ Action: 7-0 days prior to commencement 
■ Cancellation Fee: 100% of total individual cancelled course fees 

■ Action: Failure to show (on-site, KC, LINK, or virtual classes) 
■ Cancellation Fee: 100% of total individual cancelled course fees (80% attendance required to receive credit for the 

course) 
■ Action: On-site course 

■ Cancellation Fee: Fees set forth above, plus instructor's non-recoverable travel expenses 
○ In the event Cerner cancels a course less than 21 business days prior to the scheduled course date which prohibits participants 

from attending, Client will receive an on-account credit to be applied toward future education courses. The scheduled course must 
have previously been paid in full in order to receive credit. Note: No credit will be offered if the class is cancelled due to Client's 
inability to meet material and/or technical obligations 

● CHC Cancellation 
○ All cancellations and transfers must be submitted in writing via mail, email, or fax to: 

■ Email: CernerHealthConference@Cerner.com 
■ Fax: 1.800.645.7110, option 1 
■ Mail: Cerner Health Conference, C/O Abby Tibbles, 2800 Rockcreek Parkway, Kansas City, MO 64117 

○ To transfer a registration within the organization, contact registration headquarters via email at 
CernerHealthConference@Cerner.com. Processing fees do not apply to name transfers 

● Event Cancellation 
○ Policies regarding cancellation to Cerner events will vary for each event. Prior to enrollment, Client should contact Cerner to obtain 

the unique cancellation policy 
● A signed Cerner Sales Order must be on file to secure the on-site course date, late cancellation fees will apply 
● Late cancellation fees apply 

  
 

Solution Summary 

This Sales Order outlines the professional services that have been purchased and that are associated with the Applications 
listed below, as well as additional consulting services purchased to supplement or support the implementation. 

Application Services 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 35 of 40 

• Consulting Services - Additional 

 

Phasing Summary 

Application/Service 

Phase 1 - 3 Month Duration 

Consulting Services - Additional 

Professional Services Scope 

Professional Services 

Consulting Services 

 Cerner will utilize best practices experience to deliver the following services. 

 Additional Consulting Services 

 Cerner will perform the following OPENLink Integration Consultant tasks: 

• Provide up to 200 hours for best practice recommendations and interface design, specification review, and 
migration/build support upon Client's completion of OPENLink education. 

Project Assumptions 

General Assumptions 

 The following General Assumptions frame the scope and work associated with the implementation.   These 
assumptions are not intended to be a definitive list of tasks or responsibilities, but rather include key obligations required to 
support the mutually agreed upon scope. 

• Kern Medical Center will provide an environment that supports the project team's work through completion of the 
project.  This may include, but is not limited to, dedicated team conference room(s), separate desks for Cerner on-site 
consultants, telephone access, internet and network access, system access and sign-on and administrative support as 
appropriate 

• Cerner and Client will mutually agree to the timing and scheduling of required Cerner education to support the 
implementation process 

• Reimbursable Expenses.  Client agrees to reimburse Cerner for the following travel expenses incurred by Cerner in its 
performance of Services: (a) air travel, not to exceed the coach class rate; (b) auto rentals; (c) lodging; (d) 
miscellaneous expenses, such as parking, taxi fares, and fuel; and (e) a per diem rate for meals, as published and 
updated by the U.S. General Services Administration. 

• Shipping and Handling.  Standard shipping and handling fees are payable upon shipment of the applicable Equipment. 
Additional fees may apply if Client requests expedited shipping. Notwithstanding any other agreement between the 
parties regarding shipping terms, the items set forth in this Cerner Sales Order will be shipped FOB the manufacturer's 
plant. 

• Cerner will review Client provided information related to major business initiatives, such as facility or infrastructure 
expansion or renovation, additional technology investments, in-house re-engineering efforts, or other consulting 
engagements, that may affect the implementation during the planning phase when Client has contracted with Cerner 
for full implementation services. 

• Kern Medical Center will translate their clinical and/or business requirements into system related decisions and 
settings.  Cerner will provide guidance configuring software when appropriate for the level of contracted services 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 36 of 40 

• Kern Medical Center will use current Third Party Software suppliers unless being replaced by a Cerner system included 
in this agreement 

• Kern Medical Center will develop unit and integrated testing scenarios, as well as manage and execute System testing 
with Cerner collaborating with Client on resolution of functional design issues 

• Kern Medical Center will develop core trainer and end user training materials if required for contracted software in this 
agreement 

• Cerner base services include support for the Application live event as specified in the Project Workplan or this Sales 
Order.  This also includes routing issues through the appropriate event tracking system and transitioning Client to 
support 

Technology Assumptions 

 The following Technology Assumptions frame the scope and work associated with the implementation.   These 
assumptions are not intended to be a definitive list of tasks or responsibilities, but rather include key obligations required to 
support the mutually agreed upon scope 

• An enterprise backup solution is in place for CHO hardware components at Client site that includes the ability to 
recover data in accordance with Kern Medical Center defined timeframes 

 

 

CAREVIVE SCOPE OF WORK 
(TP Carevive FF) 

 
 

Service 
Description 

Project Management - coordinate, communicate and track the activities of the integrated project 
team across all activities. This includes:  

• Develop a unified project plan across all resources and work streams   

• Manage project timeline  

• Identify required Supplier resources and work efforts  

• Manage and facilitate the project kickoff meeting with project leaders 

• Track all project activities  

• Maintain the log of project issues and resolutions  

• Facilitate weekly status meetings and publish the associated minutes  

• Manage issue escalations with Supplier and Client 

 
Program Design - formal project kickoff, laying the foundation of identifying key success criteria, 
target user groups, key implementation requirements as well as the initial roadmap of cancer types 
that will be addressed.  This includes: 

• Facilitate the analysis of current state including workflow, organization and available data.  

• Work with Client team to identify data gaps and closure strategies  

• Identify success KPIs and other criteria 

• Identify the future state process requirements 

• Work with the Client team to build the implementation roadmap.   

• The implementation process is executed in 5 integrated work streams  

 

o Configuration and Content Localization  

o Workflow Definition  

o Integration  

o Solution Validation  

o Training and Change Management 

 



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 37 of 40 

CAREVIVE SCOPE OF WORK 
(TP Carevive FF) 

 
 

Platform Configuration and Content Localization - implements the Supplier platform and localizes 
it to the specific local resources and clinical guidelines required by the practice.  This includes: 

• Setup both the production and staging (testing and training) environments.   

• Facilitate the localization of care plan resources (referrals, local education materials, etc.)  

• Facilitate the localization of care plan recommendations and tasks; configuring recommendations 
and tasks for all in-scope Clinical Topics  

• Configure the Supplier application with localized resources and recommendations  

• Configure Client surveys for distress screening  

 
Workflow Design - builds on the current state analysis and workflow requirements defined during the 
program design, to define the future state clinical and administrative workflow that integrates the 
Supplier solution.  This includes:   

• Work with key member of the clinical and administrative teams to define the workflow with the 
Supplier Application   

• Socialize the clinical workflow with clinical staff to achieve consensus and buy-in  

   
Solution Integration - ensures that the connections between Cerner data and Supplier are 
successfully configured.  This includes: 

• Complete the mapping of Cerner data to the Supplier application  

• Solution data gaps between the Clients Cerner implementation and Supplier  

• Define process changes required to close the data gaps  

• Set-up solution for single sign on 

• Supplier will deliver tumor registry integration prior to go-live of the Cerner integration.  

 
Solution Validation - facilitates the testing and release readiness of the solution and ensures all 
product localizations are in place and correctly reflected in the platform, as well as ensures the 
integration properly maps the data into Supplier.  This includes: 

• Facilitate the development of the solution test plan (based on Supplier sample plans)  

• Execute solution testing with the Client to validate all localizations and integration  

• Perform troubleshooting and fix defects  

• Promote the configured solution to production  

 

Training and Change Management - defines and executes the localization of training materials, the 
training of Client trainers, and the definition and facilitation of pre-work associated with workflow and 
process changes. This includes: 

• Build the Supplier training materials  

• Coordinate training and change management plans with Client resources  

• Train the trainer activities  

• Setup of admin user accounts with privileges to manage the user community   

• Definition of pre-go-live activities and timeline  

• Off-site technical support for rollout 

 
 

Deliverables • Project plan  

• Meeting Minutes  



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 38 of 40 

CAREVIVE SCOPE OF WORK 
(TP Carevive FF) 

 
 

• Program design presentation  

• Completed configuration worksheets for resource localization  

• Completed worksheets for compendium localization 

• Client-specific production and testing environment with all localizations 

• Completed workflow design presentation  

• Completed data integration setup in testing and production 

• Completed security (single sign on) integration in production   

• Solution test plans for the localized and integrated solution  

• Validated test and production environments  

• Localized training materials  

• Delivered training of Client trainers 
 

Personnel • Project Manager 

• Solution/Integration Analyst 

• Clinical Specialist 

• Configuration Analyst 
 

Estimated Duration 
and Work Effort 

Work stream  Begin  End  Supplier 
Resource/Effort 

Client Resources  

Project Management  Week 
1  

Week 
12 

Project Manager (70 
hrs) 

Project Manager 

Program Design  
 

Week 
1 

Week 
3 

Solution Analyst (10 
hrs) 
Clinical Specialist 
(10 hrs) 

Project champion 
Clinical project leaders  
Project Business 
leaders 

Platform Configuration 
and Content 
Localization 

Week 
4 

Week 
8 

Solution Analyst (10 
hrs) 
Configuration 
Analyst (15 hrs)  
Clinical Specialist 
(15 hrs)  

Clinical project leaders  
Navigation leaders 

Solution Integration  Week 
4  

Week 
12 

Solution Analyst (20 
hrs) 

Clinical IT 
Analysts/Developers 
 

Workflow Design Week 
4  

Week 
8 

Clinical Specialist 
(20 hrs) 

Clinical Staff 

Solution Validation  Week 
9 

Week 
14 

Solution Analyst (30 
hrs) 

Clinical Staff 

Training and Change 
Management  

Week 
12 

Week 
16 

Clinical Specialist 
(30 hrs)   

Project Champions 
Client Trainers 

  

Client 
Responsibilities 

• Project Management 

o Assign a staff member to serve as Supplier’s primary point of contact 

o Prepare a brief status report for each weekly meeting 

o Provide feedback on product usability and areas for improvement 

•  Platform Configuration and Content Localization  

o Provide a copy of Client’s logo to be used on Client’s subdomains 

o Provide a copy of annual report (broken down number of the annual volume of each tumor 
type) to Supplier by end of Q1 of each year 

o Complete configuration worksheets, including identification of Client-specific resources for 
Supplier care plan recommendations and tasks  



      CERNER SYSTEM SCHEDULE NO. 7  

 

 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 39 of 40 

CAREVIVE SCOPE OF WORK 
(TP Carevive FF) 

 
 

o Provide copies of any and all PDFs to be loaded into Supplier’s CMS  

• Solution Integration  

o Support data availability and gap analysis 

o Support data gap closure  

o Provide any required software development against the Client’s IT infrastructure 

• Workflow Design  

o Participate in current state workflow discovery 

o Participate and approve future state workflow design 

• Acceptance Testing and Operational Readiness  

o Modify test plan as necessary 

o Run test cases 

o Report defects 

o Approve configuration for automated deployment into production 

• Product Support Center Configuration  

o Assist with problem isolation and testing fixes 

• User Training and Production Deployment (Go-Live) 

o User management 
 

Assumptions • Final timelines and project schedule will be reviewed and approved by the Client during the first 3 
weeks of the project  

• Cerner will direct Client to assign appropriate clinical and IT staff to the project on a timely basis 

• Cerner will direct Client to assign staff will have the ability to sign off on deliverables  

• Cerner will direct Client to provide timely feedback on all deliverables and work products   

• Cerner will notify Client staff that delays in delivering Client assigned tasks and work products 
may result in schedule delays and additional costs. 

 

 
 

Third Party Services.  Capitalized terms used in third party statements of work shall have the meanings ascribed to them 
herein, or as set forth in the applicable third party’s pass-through provisions.  Where there is a conflict between the definitions in 
third party statements of work and the Agreement, the definitions in this Scope of Services section shall control, but only with 
regards to the subject matter set forth herein. 

 

 



 

 

 

 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

1-6DXSK3G 
May 25, 2018 

 
Page 40 of 40 

EVENT ACTIVITY REPORT  

 

 

Client: Kern County Hospital Authority 
1700 Mount Vernon Ave   
Bakersfield, CA  93306-4018 USA 

Subject: Solution Delivery 

Document ID: 1-6DXSK3G 
 
 

 
 
This Event Activity Report (“EAR”) serves as confirmation that delivery has occurred of the solutions set forth below.  This 
delivery event does not include customization or implementation of such solutions. 

 

Solution Family Solution Code Solution Description 

iAccess CTP-IATK-SMALL Cerner Instant Access Toolkit (1-249 beds) 

PathNet PA-22247 Cassette Labeler Interface (Uni-Dir) w/o NiceLabel 

Workflow Authentication CTP-CERN-WORKFLOWC Cerner Workflow Authentication 

 

I acknowledge that delivery of these solutions occurred on  ___________________. 
(Date) 

 
The following signature represents completion of this delivery event. 

ACCEPTED FOR KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

By:  

  

Title: 

(type or print) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Agreement with Corepoint Health for the purchase and implementation of an integrated engine 

software solution for the facilitation of the Millennium Project which is the implementation of the Cerner 
electronic health record.  
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed agreement with Corepoint Health which provides for 
an Integration Engine software solution that integrates healthcare applications and connects healthcare 
providers together to facilitate efficient and timely patient data flow. The Integration Engine is a mission critical 
integration solution that provides a platform for developing interfaces quickly and accurately using 
communications protocols and data standards customized by the user. 
 
Year 1 cost: $167,950.00 

 License fees 

 Implementation services 

 Training costs 

 $10,000 travel expenses 
 
Years 2 thru 7: $139,200 (if agreement is allowed to renew) 

 $23,200 per year including annual support costs and Developers' license 
 
The Agreement contains non‐standard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to a limitation 
of liability to six months of fees, indemnification limited to infringement and does not include any 
indemnification for possible malfeasance, fees for cooperation in possible litigation due to breaches of privacy 
laws, and strict notification terms for requests of documents.  















Russell E. Bigler

Chairman, Board of Governors

June 20, 2018





























































Russell E. Bigler

Chairman, Board of Governors

June 20, 2018



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016-041 with the County of Kern, as represented 
by the Administrative Office, Kern County Sheriff’s Office, and Kern County Probation Department  
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical will provide Correctional Medical Care to the Kern County Sheriff’s Department and the Kern 
County Probation Department. Kern Medical will appoint a single onsite health authority who will be responsible 
for correctional healthcare. 
 
Kern Medical will provide within the facilities as many services as possible and will delineate in writing those 
services that will be available at Kern Medical or through community providers. Healthcare services will meet 
the minimum requirements of Title 15 and 24. Healthcare services will be available at a level to address acute 
symptoms and/or conditions and avoid pre-deterioration of health while in correctional confinement. This 
Amendment is effective July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020 in the amount of $21,767,469 for Fiscal Year 2018-
2019 (revenue). 



1 
 

 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 

TO 
CORRECTIONAL MEDICINE AGREEMENT 

(County of Kern – Kern County Hospital Authority) 
  

This Amendment No. 1 to the Correctional Medicine Agreement is made and entered into 
this _____ day of __________, 2018, between the County of Kern, a political subdivision of the 
state of California (“County”), on behalf of the County Administrative Office (“CAO”), the Kern 
County Sheriff’s Office and the Kern County Probation Department (collectively “Responsible 
County Departments”), and the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local unit of government 
(“Authority”), which owns and operates Kern Medical Center (“Kern Medical”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

(a) County and Authority have heretofore entered into a Correctional Medicine 
Agreement (Kern County Agt. #718-2016, dated June 22, 2016) (the “Agreement”), for the 
period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2018, whereby Authority through Kern Medical provides 
health care services to inmates and juvenile wards under the responsibility of the Responsible 
County Departments; and   
 
 (b) The parties agree to amend certain terms and conditions of the Agreement as 
hereinafter set forth; and 
 
 (c) The Agreement is amended effective July 1, 2018; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 
agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 
 
1. Section 1, Term of Agreement and Records at Termination of Agreement, paragraph 1.1 
shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“1.1 Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2016, 
and remain in effect through June 30, 2020, unless the Board of Supervisors has selected 
a replacement provider of healthcare services to inmates and juvenile wards under the 
responsibility of Responsible County Departments.” 

 
2. Section 3, Equipment and Facilities, paragraph 3.1 shall be deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following:   

 
“3.1  Responsible County Departments will provide space, routine custodial 

services, routine building maintenance, housekeeping, linen, computer lines, furniture, 
fixtures, utilities, telephones, modem and fax lines, security, and other similar items 
necessary for the efficient operation of the health care delivery system.  Any equipment 
purchased by Kern Medical for use in County’s jail facilities shall remain the property of 
County upon termination of this Agreement.  Kern Medical shall be responsible for the 



2 
 

maintenance of any equipment it purchases for use in County’s jail facilities as long as 
this Agreement remains in effect.  Equipment purchases shall be included as part of the 
budget described in section 5 herein.  Within 30 days of the effective date of this 
Agreement, Responsible County Departments and Kern Medical shall prepare a list of all 
equipment and inventory items at all County jail facilities.” 
 

3. Section 5, Compensation, paragraph 5.3, Exceptions to Base Compensation, 
subparagraph 5.3.3, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:   
 

“5.3.3 The financial obligation of Kern Medical is limited to the 
following existing programs and services and specifically excludes those 
participants assigned to the Department of State Hospitals’ Admission, Evaluation 
and Stabilization program: (a) Adult Jail Facilities, which include Central 
Receiving Facility, Lerdo Pre-Trial Facility, Male Minimum Facility, Female 
Minimum Facility, and Maximum-Medium; and (b) Juvenile Detention Facilities 
and Programs, which include Kern Crossroads Facility, Juvenile Hall and 
incorporated rehabilitative programs, and Camp Erwin Owen.  In the event that 
any new facility is opened, any facility or program is closed, or the capacity of 
any facility is changed from the capacity at the time this Agreement becomes 
effective, this Agreement shall be amended to reflect a change in operational costs 
and the CAO, as well as Responsible County Departments will be notified of the 
proposed change(s).”  

 
4. Section 11, Notices, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 
“11. Notices.  Notices to be given by one party to the other under this Agreement shall 
be given in writing by personal delivery, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or 
express delivery service at the addresses specified below.  Notices delivered personally 
shall be deemed received upon receipt; mailed or expressed notices shall be deemed 
received four (4) days after deposit.  A party may change the address to which notice is to 
be given by giving notice as provided above.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
construed to prevent or render ineffective delivery of notices required or permitted under 
this Agreement by personal service.  

 
  Notice to County:    County of Kern  

  Administrative Center 
  1115 Truxtun Avenue, Fifth Floor  
  Bakersfield, CA 93301  
  Attn.: County Administrative Officer 

 
  Notice to Sheriff:    Kern County Sheriff’s Office  

  1350 Norris Road 
  Bakersfield, CA 93308  
  Attn.: Sheriff-Coroner 
 
 



3 
 

 
  Notice to Probation:   Kern County Probation Department  

  2005 Ridge Road  
  Bakersfield, CA 93305  

       Attn.: Chief Probation Officer  
 

 Notice to Authority:  Kern Medical Center  
   1700 Mount Vernon Avenue  

  Bakersfield, CA 93306  
  Attn.: Chief Executive Officer” 
 

5. Section 30, Importing Inmates from other Jurisdictions, shall be deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following: 
 

“30. Importing Inmates from other Jurisdictions.  If the Kern County Sheriff’s 
Office engages in the import of inmates from any of California’s 57 counties or any state 
or federal agency, including without limitation the U.S. Marshals Service, said 
importation shall include sufficient funding to provide adequate medical care for the new 
inmate population separate and apart from the dollar amounts agreed upon per the 
parameters of section 5 herein.  Similarly, all medical costs incurred for off-site treatment 
of imported inmates shall be the responsibility of the county/agency of origin.  The Kern 
County Sheriff’s Office shall be responsible for tracking costs and revenue associated 
with the care provided to imported inmates.  Under no circumstances shall the budget 
associated with this Agreement be comingled or included with the costs necessary to 
provide care for any imported inmates.” 

 
6. All capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined, shall have the 
meaning ascribed thereto in the Agreement. 
 
7. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
state of California. 
 
8. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which take together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
9. Except as provided herein, all other terms, conditions and covenants of the Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect.   
 

[Signatures follow on next page] 



4 
 

 IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the parties have executed this Amendment No. 1 
as of the day and year first written above. 
 
COUNTY OF KERN 
 
 
By_______________________ 
    Chairman 
    Board of Supervisors 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
 
 
By_______________________ 
    Ryan J. Alsop 
    County Administrative Officer 
 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 
 
By_______________________ 
 
Name: ___________________  
 
Title: ____________________ 
 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT 
 
 
By_______________________ 
 
Name: ___________________  
 
Title: ____________________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
OFFICE OF COUNTY COUNSEL 
 
 
By_______________________ 
    Chief Deputy 
 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
 
 
By_______________________ 
    Chairman 
    Board of Governors 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
KERN MEDICAL CENTER 
 
 
By_______________________ 
    Russell V. Judd 
    Chief Executive Officer 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
 
By_______________________ 
    VP & General Counsel 
    Kern County Hospital Authority 
 

 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed retroactive Agreement with the County of Kern, as represented by the 
Administrative Office, Kern County Sheriff’s Office – Justice Facility 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign Subject to Approval as to Form by 
Counsel 
 
Summary:   
 
On May 12, 2018, the Kern County Sheriff’s Office opened the Kern County Justice Facility. Kern Medical will 
provide Correctional Medical Care to the Kern County Sheriff’s Department. Kern Medical will appoint a single 
onsite health authority who will be responsible for correctional healthcare. 
 
Kern Medical will provide within the facility, as many services as possible and will delineate in writing those 
services that will be available at Kern Medical or through community providers. Healthcare services will meet 
the minimum requirements of Title 15 and 24. Healthcare services will be available at a level to address acute 
symptoms and/or conditions and avoid pre‐deterioration of health while in correctional confinement. This 
Agreement is effective retroactive to May 12, 2018 through June 30, 2020 in the amount of $8,557,346 for Fiscal 
Year 2018‐2019 (revenue). 



The proposed agreement with County of Kern, as represented by the County 

Administrative Office and Kern County Sheriff’s Office, for correctional medicine 

services at Kern County Justice Facility is available to review in the Administrative 

Office at Kern Medical. 

 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mt. Vernon Avenue 
Bakersfield, CA  93306 

661‐326‐2102 
 

 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed appointment of Moss‐Adams LLC to audit the Kern County Hospital Authority 
Deferred Compensation Plan for Physician Employees 
  
Recommended Action: Approve  
  
Summary:    
  

The authority sponsors the Kern County Hospital Authority Deferred Compensation Plan for Physician 
Employees (the “Plan”), an Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) defined contribution, money purchase 
retirement plan, for eligible physician employees of Kern Medical Center. 

 
The Plan provides that a Pension Committee appointed by your Board shall oversee administration of 
the Plan.  The Pension Committee has the sole and exclusive fiduciary responsibility over the assets of 
the  Plan,  and  is  responsible  to  administer  the  Plan  in  a manner  that will  assure  prompt  delivery  of 
benefits  and  to  hold  the  Plan’s  assets  for  the  exclusive  purposes  of  providing  benefits  to  the  Plan 
participants and their beneficiaries. 

 
Section 8.3 of  the Plan  states  the Pension Committee has all of  the powers and duties necessary  to 
accomplish  these  purposes  including  recommending  to  your  Board  the  appointment  of  any  service 
provider  that  the  Pension  Committee  determines  is  necessary  or  desirable  in  connection  with 
administration of the Plan, including auditors. 
 
Historically the Kern County Auditor‐Controller audited the Plan every two years.  The last audit was in 
2016.   The Pension Committee recommends the appointment of Moss‐Adams LLC to perform annual 
audits of the Plan. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the appointment of Moss‐Adams LLC to 
perform annual audits of the Kern County Hospital Authority Deferred Compensation Plan for Physician 
Employees. 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 4 to Agreement #1048‐2010 with Total Renal Care, Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Amendment No. 4 with Total Renal Care, Inc., 
a subsidiary of DaVita Inc., for the provision of acute dialysis services at Kern Medical. The amendment 
lengthens the term by two years, increasing the maximum payable by $1,100,000, $550,000 per year, 
for a total maximum payable of $4,025,000 for the eleven‐year agreement. The amendment also 
includes a change in the fee schedule and the inclusion of new quality improvement items.      
 
The Agreement is effective as of June 20, 2018.   
 
The Agreement contains non‐standard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to the 
suspension of the termination without cause section to November 1, 2018.    



1 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO 
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO THE AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR ("Amendment No. 4") is entered into and 
effective as of June 20, 2018 ("Amendment No. 4 Effective Date"), by and between Total Renal 
Care, Inc., ("CONTRACTOR"), a subsidiary of DaVita Inc., "DaVita"), and the Kern County 
Hospital Authority ("KCHA"), a local unit of government, which owns and operates Kern 
Medical Center ("KMC"). 

 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 
WHEREAS, on November 30, 2010, the parties hereto entered into that certain Agreement 

for Professional Services ("Agreement"), Kern County Agreement #1048-2010, pursuant to 
which KMC agreed to engage the services of Contractor to provide acute dialysis services at KMC; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, on March 25, 2014, the parties hereto executed that certain Amendment No. 

1 to the Agreement ("Amendment No. 1") to revise several sections, including the renewal of the 
Agreement by for a period of three (3) years from December 1, 2013 through November 30, 2016, 
and replacing several sections with updated language; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 1, 2016, the Assignment of Agreements became effective transferring 

the Agreement and First Amendment from the County of Kern to KCHA; and 
 
WHEREAS, on August 23, 2016, the parties hereto executed Amendment No. 2 to the 

Agreement, KCHA# 14616PA, ("Amendment No. 2") to revise the Fee Schedule and update the 
Maximum Payable; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 1, 2016, the parties hereto executed Amendment No. 3 to the 

Agreement, KCHA# 14616PA, ("Amendment No. 3") to extend the term, revise the Fee 
Schedule, add certain other terms and update the Maximum Payable; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 24 of the Agreement, the parties wish to further 

amend the Agreement to extend the term of the Agreement, and to make other necessary 
modifications to the Agreement as set forth herein. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises contained in this 
Amendment No. 4, the parties do hereby agree as follows: 
 

 
1.  Section 1.2 shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 



2 
 

 
"1.2 This Agreement. Performance by Contractor and KCHA shall commence on 
December 1, 2010 (the "Effective Date"), and shall end November 30, 2021 (the 
"Term"), unless earlier terminated pursuant to other provisions of this 
Agreement." 

 
2.  Section 34.2, Termination Without Cause, of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety 
and replaced with the following:   
 
“34.2, Termination Without Cause.  Beginning on November 1, 2018, the parties may terminate 
this Agreement, without cause, upon ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to the other party.  For 
the avoidance of doubt, any such termination under this Section 34.2 will not be effective before 
February 1, 2019.”   
 
3.  Section 2.21.1, Quality Improvement (“QI”), of the Agreement is hereby amended to add 
the following new subsections: 
 

"6) With respect to CRRT services only, measurement of the achievement rate of 
two (2) hour STAT response time. 

 
7) With respect to CRRT services only, measurement of the number of cartridge 

changes for each CRRT patient.” 
 
4.  Exhibit G-3, Fee Schedule, is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the Exhibit 
G-4 Fee Schedule attached to and incorporated into the Agreement by this reference.   
 
5. Section 3.2 Maximum Payable, of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following:  
 
  “3.2  Maximum Payable.  The maximum payable under this Agreement will not 
exceed $275,000 per year or $825,000 for the three year period of December 1, 2010 to November 
30, 2013; will not exceed $300,000 per year or $900,000 for the three year period of December 1, 
2013 to November 30, 2016; will not exceed $400,000 per year or $1,200,000 for the three year 
period of December 1, 2016 to November 30, 2019; and will not exceed $550,000 per year or 
$1,100,000 for the two year period of December 1, 2019 to November 30, 2021. The total 
maximum payable for the eleven year term of this Agreement will not exceed $4,025,000.      
 
 

[Signatures to Follow] 
 
  



3 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment No.4 by their 

duly authorized representatives: 
 
KCHA:      CONTRACTOR: 
Kern County Hospital Authority   Total Renal Care, Inc. 
 
 
By: ____________________________  By: ____________________________ 
 
Name:  Russell Bigler    Name:  Michael Unton 
 
Title:  Chairman, Board of Governors  Title:  Division Vice President 
 
Date: __________________________  Date: __________________________ 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:   APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
Kern Medical Center    DaVita Inc. 
 
 
By: ____________________________  By: ____________________________ 
 
Name:  Toni Smith, RN    Name:  Thor Paulson 
 
Title:  Chief Nursing Officer   Title:  Group General Counsel 
 
Date: __________________________ 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY:    
Legal Services Department     
 
 
By: ____________________________   
 
Name:  Shannon Hochstein     
 
Title:   Hospital Counsel    
 
 
 

 



4 
 

EXHIBIT G-4 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

NOTE: the fees listed in the schedule set forth below include services provided to admitted and non-
admitted persons for whom such persons’ treatments are being billed by KMC to any third party payors 
(or otherwise paid for by KMC). 
 
Hemodialysis:  
 
Hemodialysis: 1:1 patient to staff ratio, up to 4 hours $700.40 per treatment 

Hemodialysis: 2:11 patient to staff ratio, up to 4 hours $494.40 per 
treatment1 

Hemodialysis: additional charge per hour for treatments ordered longer than 
4 hours 

$51.50 per hour 

 
Peritoneal Dialysis (PD: CAPD, CCPD) 
  

CAPD Visit $381.10 per visit 

CCPD Visit $381.10 per visit 

Continuous Renal Replacement Therapy (CRRT: SCUF, CVVH, CVVHD, CVVHDF) 

  

CRRT Full Service: Visit $670  per visit 

CRRT Full Service: Cartridge Change $261.00 per change 

CRRT Full Service: Initial Cartridge $261.00 per cartridge 

CRRT Full Service: Pre Set Up Cancellation (labor) $100.00 per 
cancellation 

CRRT Full Service: Post Set Up Cancellation (labor and supplies, if costs 
incurred) 

$250.00 per 
cancellation 

Apheresis 
 
Therapeutic Plasma Exchange $ 1236.00 per 

treatment 

Miscellaneous 
 
Waiting Time (after 15 minute grace period beginning on 16th minute) $51.50 per ½ hour 

RN Consultation2 $51.50 per ½ hour 

Program Maintenance Fee*  $4,120 per month 

 

                                                            
*Less than 25 treatments per month 



5 
 

EXHIBIT G-4  

 

Fee Schedule Footnoted Descriptions and Definitions: 

 
1. Definition of 2:1: A ratio of 2 patients to 1 nurse, where the treatment is performed in a 

designated dialysis suite and the longer of the 2 patient treatments must overlap the other 
treatment by at least 50%. 
 
 

2. Definition of RN Consultation: Any nursing service outside of the scope of dialysis related 
services set forth in this Agreement. This includes, but is not limited to, the following: 
Initiation/Discontinuation of IV infusion via dialysis access (not in conjunction with a dialysis 
treatment); dressing changes; non-dialysis related medication delivery, etc. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employees Scott Cote, Rosa Martinez, 

Debbie Pershadsingh, and Dr. Wedad Rizkalla 

 
Recommended Action:  Approve 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical is requesting approval to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employees as shown in 
the table below, for the period ending June 30, 2019, or 960 hours, whichever occurs first, effective July 1, 2018.   
 

Employee  Classification  Department 

Cote, Scott  Extra Help Clinical Pharmacist  Pharmacy ‐ Clinical 

Martinez, Rosa   Extra Help Physician Assistant  Department of Family Medicine 

Pershadsingh, Debbie  Extra Help Administrative Coordinator  Behavioral Services 

Rizkalla, Wedad M.  Extra Help Associate‐Pediatrics  Medical Staff ‐ Pediatrics 

 
 
The Public Employee Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) sets forth post‐retirement employment requirements for all 
retirees receiving a pension benefit from a public retirement system who return to work for a public employer.  
The authority  is a designated public employer  for purposes of KCERA and  the Kern County Hospital Authority 
Defined  Contribution  Plan  for  Physician  Employees,  as  both  conform  to  the  PEPRA  definition  of  “public 
retirement system.”  Under PEPRA, a retiree may be reemployed up to a maximum of 960 hours per fiscal year, 
subject to approval by your Board.   
 
The justification for employing these retired employees is attached. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the reemployment of the employees listed in the above 
table, effective July 1, 2018. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Cote, Scott 
JUSTIFICATION:  Dr. Cote retired effective December 8, 2017.  Dr. Cote worked at Kern Medical for 26 years, 
most of that time as a clinical pharmacist in the Intensive Care Unit (ICU) and in ambulatory care clinics. Dr. Cote 
was reemployed in January 2018 after approval from your Board to waive the 180‐day post‐retirement waiting 
period, which PEPRA allows to meet a critical need.  Dr. Cote continues to have the requisite experience and skill 
set needed to perform the work for which he is being employed.  Kern Medical has a critical need to employ Dr. 
Cote to ensure there is sufficient coverage for the ICU as well as in the ambulatory care clinics.  Currently, Kern 
Medical has seven clinical pharmacists who cover a very busy service, which has been exacerbated by three 
vacancies and one leave of absence within the department.  Clinical pharmacists are in short supply and Kern 
County remains a difficult region to recruit highly qualified clinical pharmacists, exponentially more so with 
specialty pharmacists such as critical care pharmacists like Dr. Cote.  Recruitment for Dr. Cote’s replacement has 
been underway, but unsuccessful to date.  This continued recruitment effort is anticipated to take months, 
based on the current experience of another local hospital who has been recruiting nationally for an ICU 
pharmacist for the past 11 months.  In the interim, the current staffing levels within the department of Clinical 
Pharmacy and the lack of critical care specialty training of the remaining clinical pharmacists within the 
department are inadequate to maintain patient safety without the interim employment of Dr. Cote.  As such, Dr. 
Cote will be employed for a limited duration, while Kern Medical continues to recruit for another full time 
clinical pharmacist.     

 
 
Martinez, Rosa 
JUSTIFICATION: 
Ms. Martinez has the requisite experience and skill set needed to perform the work for which she is being 
reemployed.  She helps with training new mid‐levels and students that are rotating in the Peds and Family 
Practice Clinic.  Ms. Martinez will be employed for a limited duration to fill voids in staffing in the Department of 
Family Medicine. 

 
 
Pershadsingh, Debbie 
JUSTIFICATION:  Ms. Pershadsingh will use her specialized skillset and knowledge base to assist with the 

medical staff’s (Faculty) UCLA appointment and reappointment process.   This is a very limited skill set within the 
organization.  This is not a full‐time position nor utilized in a full‐time capacity. 
 

 
Rizkalla, Wedad M. 
JUSTIFICATION:  Dr. Rizkalla retired effective September 3, 2017.  Dr. Rizkalla is a participant in the Kern 

County Hospital Authority Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees (the “Plan”), which is a 
governmental plan sponsored by the authority for its employed physicians.  Dr. Rizkalla worked at Kern Medical 
for 30 years as a pediatrician and has the requisite experience and skill set needed to perform the work for 
which she is being employed.  Kern Medical has a critical need to employ Dr. Rizkalla, to ensure there is 
sufficient pediatric coverage for the clinic, normal newborn nursery, inpatient unit, and call.  Currently Kern 
Medical has five pediatricians who cover a very busy service.  In the absence of a fifth pediatrician, there will be 
voids in staffing, which could compromise patient care.  Dr. Rizkalla will be employed for a limited duration, 
while Kern Medical continues to recruit for another full‐time pediatrician.    



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Agreement with Korchek Technologies, LLC, for the purchase of software and services to migrate data 
from the current electronic medical record into the new Electronic Health Record 

 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed agreement with Korchek Technologies, LLC for the 
purchase of software and services for the migration of data from Careview Open Vista into Cerner. Korchek 
Technologies is a data extraction and conversion company who provides such services for clients needing to 
migrate data from one electronic information system to another. 
 
In this agreement, Korchek agrees to perform the following services: 

 Extraction and Validation: Blood Bank Data 

 Extraction and Validation: Multi-Drug Resistant Organisms (MDRO) Data 

 Extraction and Validation: Master Person Index (MPI) Data 

 Extraction and Validation: Continuity of Care Document (CCD) Data 

 Extraction and Validation: Pediatric Vitals (PED’s) Data 

 Data Conversion Documentation for all of the above 
 
Cost for these services are one-time only as follows: 

 Blood Bank:    $51,700 

 MDRO:     $21,000 

 MPI:     $35,000 

 CCD:     $57,750 

 PED’s:     $45,500 

 Data Conversion:   $40,500 

 Returning Customer Discount:  ($4,700) 
TOTAL:     $246,750 

 
 
The Agreement is effective on the start of the installation and training and will automatically renew for one-year 
terms unless terminated with thirty (30) days prior to the anniversary of the effective date.   
 
The Agreement contains non-standard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to no 
indemnification, no warranty except on third-party hardware and software as provided by third party, late fees, 
and auto-renewal of term.    



























 
 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed renewal and binding of insurances coverages from July 1, 2018 through 
June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $1,528,599 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve, authorize Chief Executive Officer to sign the Premium 
Finance Agreement with IPFS Corporation of California 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board’s approval to renew and bind the following insurance 
coverages for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019: 
 

 Hospital Professional Liability, General Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability 

 Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability 

 Automobile Liability 

 Heliport & Non‐Owned Aircraft Liability 

 Directors & Officers Liability 

 Employment Practices Liability 

 Crime  

 Privacy and Security (Cyber) Liability 

 Premises Pollution Liability 

 Underground Storage Tanks (UST) Liability 

 Property: Building, Equipment, Business Interruption, Earthquake & Flood 

 Employed Lawyers Liability 

 Fiduciary Liability 
 

Hospital Professional Liability, General Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability *  
Kern Medical recommends renewing coverage for the Hospital Professional Liability, General 
Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability with Columbia Casualty Company (CNA).  

 

 Insurance Carriers: Columbia Casualty Company (CNA) and National Fire & Marine 
Insurance Company (MedPro) 

 Rating: Carriers have the following ratings with A.M. Best – CNA [A (Excellent) XV] and 
MedPro [A++ (Superior) XV]  

 Term: July 1, 2018 through July 1, 2019 

 Coverage: Hospital Professional Liability insurance protects physicians and other 
licensed health care professionals from liability associated with wrongful practices 
resulting in bodily injury, medical expenses, and the cost of defending lawsuits related 
to such claims. General Liability insures against losses from bodily injury, personal injury 
and property damage. Umbrella/Excess Liability provides additional limits in excess of 
Self‐Insured Retentions and Underlying Coverages. 



Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 Limit per Medical Incident or per Occurrence: $25,000,000 

 Self‐insured Retention (SIR):  
o $2,000,000 per Professional Liability Claim 
o $1,000,000 per General Liability Occurrence 

 Underlying Coverages: Automobile Liability, Employers Liability and Heliport Liability 

 Combined Annual Premium: $671,110 
 

Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability *  
Kern Medical recommends placing Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability coverage 
with Safety National Casualty Corporation. 
 

 Insurance Carriers: Safety National Casualty Corporation 

 Ratings: Carrier has an A+ (Superior) XV rating from A.M. Best 

 Term: July 1, 2018 – July 1, 2019 

 Coverage: This policy insures against losses from work‐related bodily injury or disease 
and coverage against the common law liability of an employer for injuries sustained by 
employees. 

 Limit per Occurrence:  
Workers’ Compensation – Statutory 
Employers Liability ‐ $5,000,000 

 SIR: $1,000,000 

 Annual Premium: $130,463    
 

Automobile Liability 
Kern Medical recommends purchasing Automobile Liability coverage for 11 vehicles and five 
trailers, which the authority owns and operates.  This includes four emergency trailers not 
previously insured.  In addition, Physical Damage coverage is recommended for all vehicles and 
trailers with the exception of two nearly 20‐year‐old cargo vans of which coverage would 
reduce to liability with comprehensive; however, no collision coverage would be afforded.  In 
addition, Medical Payments and Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist Coverages would be 
eliminated. 
 

 Insurance Carrier: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 

 Rating: Carrier has an A++ (Superior) XV rating from A.M. Best 

 Term: July 1, 2018 – July 1, 2019 

 Coverage: This policy insures against losses from automobile accident related injuries 
and property damage, including Owned, Non‐Owned and Hired Automobiles. 

 Limit per Occurrence: $1,000,000 

 Deductible: $1,000 for comprehensive and collision (where coverage applies); $0 for 
liability 

 Annual Premium: $14,509  

 Additional Option: Renew as Expiring, Vehicles as Described but no changes to coverage 
o Premium increases to $17,229 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 6 

 

 

Heliport Liability *  
Kern Medical recommends renewing Heliport Liability coverage through ACE Property & 
Casualty Insurance Co. (Chubb). 

 Insurance Carrier: ACE Property & Casualty Insurance Co. (Chubb) 

 Rating: Carrier has an A++ (Superior) XV rating from A.M. Best 

 Term: July 1, 2018 – July 1, 2019 

 Coverage: This policy insures against losses for injury to a third party or their property 
arising from the operation and maintenance of the hospital’s helipad (e.g., damage 
caused to a vehicle from debris).  The policy also protects the hospital against losses 
associated with non‐owned aircraft (e.g., patient transport by helicopter).  

 Limit per Occurrence: $10,000,000 

 Deductible: $0 

 Annual Premium: $6,019  
 
Directors and Officers Liability *  
Kern Medical recommends renewing coverage for Directors and Officers Liability coverage 
through AIG Specialty Insurance Company. 
 

 Insurance Carrier: AIG Specialty Insurance Company 

 Rating: Carrier has an A (Excellent) XV rating from A.M. Best 

 Term: July 1, 2018 – July 1, 2019 

 Coverage: This policy provides financial protection for managers against the 
consequences of actual or “wrongful acts” when acting within the scope of their 
managerial duties.  

 Limit Each Wrongful Act Claim: $5,000,000 

 SIR: $25,000 

 Annual Premium: $23,910  
 

Employment Practices Liability *  
Kern Medical recommends renewing Employment Practices Liability insurance through AIG 
Specialty Insurance Company. 
 

 Insurance Carrier: AIG Specialty Insurance Company 

 Rating: Carrier has an A (Excellent) XV rating from A.M. Best 

 Term: July 1, 2018 – July 1, 2019 

 Coverage: This policy insures against losses for wrongful acts, including wrongful 
termination, sexual harassment, discrimination, invasion of privacy, false imprisonment, 
breach of contract, and emotional distress. 

 Limit Each Wrongful Act Claim: $5,000,000 

 SIR: $500,000 

 Annual Premium: $83,855 
 
Crime 
Kern Medical recommends continued participation in the Crime insurance program offered by 
California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC‐EIA). 
  



Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 Insurance Carrier: National Union Fire Insurance of Pittsburgh, PA (AIG) 

 Rating: Carrier has an A (Excellent) XV rating from A.M. Best 

 Term: June 30, 2018 – June 30, 2019 

 Coverage: This policy insures against employee theft, robbery, forgery, extortion, and 
computer fraud.  

 Limit per Occurrence: $15,000,000 

 Deductible: $25,000 

 Annual Premium: $12,003 
 
Cyber Liability  
Kern Medical recommends continued participation in the Cyber Liability program through 
California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC‐EIA). 
  

 Insurance Carrier: Primary program layer and breach notification Lloyd’s of London – 
(Beazley Syndicate) and excess program layer Greenwich Insurance Company (XL) 

 Rating: Carriers have the following ratings with A.M. Best – Lloyd’s/Beazley  
[A (Excellent) XV] and Greenwich [A (Excellent) XV] 

 Term: July 1, 2018 – July 1, 2019 

 Coverage: This policy insures against website media content liability (including cyber 
extortion, first party data protection and first party network business interruption) and 
privacy notification costs from data breaches in which the hospital’s patients and 
employees personal information, such as names, date of birth, Social Security and credit 
card information, is exposed and stolen.  

 Limit – Incident and Aggregate: $5,000,000 

 SIR: $50,000 

 Annual Premium: $20,282 
 

Premises Pollution Liability *  
Kern Medical recommends renewing Premises Pollution Liability insurance through Illinois 
Union Insurance Company (Chubb). 
 

 Insurance Carrier: Illinois Union Insurance Company (Chubb) 

 Rating: Carrier has an A++ (Superior) XV rating from A.M. Best 

 Term: July 1, 2018 – July 1, 2019 

 Coverage: Coverage for first‐party claims arising from a pollution condition from 
premises, including clean‐up, emergency response and business interruption; coverage 
for third‐party bodily injury and property damage; coverage for transport of hazardous 
materials and non‐owned disposal sites. 

 Limit per Pollution or Indoor Environmental Condition: $1,000,000 

 SIR: $25,000 

 Annual Premium: $12,252 
 

Underground Storage Tank Liability *  
Kern Medical recommends renewing Underground Storage Tank Liability insurance through ACE 
American Insurance Company (Chubb) as it covers one underground storage tank containing 
10,000 gallons of diesel fuel and one associated above‐ground day tank. 



Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 Insurance Carrier: ACE American Insurance Company (Chubb) 

 Rating: Carrier has an A++ (Superior) XV rating from A.M. Best 

 Term: July 1, 2018 – July 1, 2019 

 Coverage: Bodily Injury or Property Damage caused by a storage tank incident, including 
Corrective Action Costs and Legal Defense Expense. Meets requirements for Financial 
Responsibility. 

 Limit per Occurrence: $1,000,000 

 SIR/Deductible: $25,000 

 Annual Premium: $579 
 
Property  
Kern Medical recommends continued participation in the Property insurance program through 
California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC‐EIA). 
 

 Insurance Carriers: CSAC‐EIA with multiple layers of excess and reinsurance from various 
carriers. 

 Rating: All Carriers must have at least an A‐ (Excellent) IX rating from A.M. Best 

 Term: 3/31/2018 – 3/31/2019 (Billed from 07/01/2018 – 07/01/2019) 

 Coverage: This policy provides All Risk coverage, including Real Property, Earthquake, 
Flood, Boiler & Machinery, Business Interruption, and more. 

 Limit per Occurrence: $800,000,000 All Risk and $540,000,000 Annual Aggregate for 
Earthquake. 

 Deductible: $100,000 All Risk; 5% of Values for Earthquake ($100,000 Minimum) 

 Annual Premium: $520,511 
 

Employed Lawyers *  
Kern Medical recommends renewing Employed Lawyers Professional Liability insurance through 
Federal Insurance Co (Chubb).   
 

 Insurance Carrier: Federal Insurance Company (Chubb) 

 Rating: Carrier has an A++ (Superior) XV rating from A.M. Best 

 Term: 7/1/2018 – 7/1/2019 

 Coverage: This policy provides professional liability coverage for employed lawyers and 
support staff from claims arising from their legal professional services.     

 Limit per Occurrence/Aggregate: $1,000,000 

 SIR: $0 Non‐Indemnified Person & $5,000 Organization 

 Annual Premium: $1,764 
 

Fiduciary Liability *  
Kern Medical recommends binding coverage for Fiduciary Liability insurance through Hudson 
Insurance Company.    
 

 Insurance Carrier: Hudson Insurance Company 

 Rating: Carrier has an A (Excellent) XV rating from A.M. Best 

 Term: 7/1/2018 – 7/1/2019 



Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 Coverage: This policy provides coverage for the Defined Contribution Plan Fiduciaries as 
they can be held personally liable for losses to a benefit plan incurred because of their 
alleged errors or omissions or breach of their fiduciary duties. 

o Limit per Occurrence/Aggregate: $3,000,000 

 SIR: $0 Non‐Indemnifiable Losses of Covered Penalties; $50,000 All Other Losses 

 Annual Premium: $6,018 

 Additional Options: 
o Option A: Decrease Limit to $1,000,000 – Premium decreases to: $3,846 
o Option B: Increase Limit to $5,000,000 – Premium increases to: $7,516  

 
Total Annual Premiums (no financing): $1,503,275 (as recommended) 
 
Premium Financing 
 
Kern Medical recommends financing the premiums as follows: 
 
1. CSAC‐EIA will provide in‐house financing of Property, Crime, and Privacy and Security 

(Cyber) coverages for an additional fee of approximately $4,196 with the cost of coverage 
and financing split between 12 equal payments; and 

 
2. IPFS Corporation of California will finance coverages with an * symbol.  Financing will 

require 15% cash down payment ($140,000), plus finance charges currently at a rate of 
5.75% (up to $21,128), for total payments not to exceed $817,098, as set forth below.   

 
Total premium ‐       $935,970 

Cash down payment ‐    ‐ $140,000 

 

Amount financed ‐      $795,970   

Finance charges (~5.75%) ‐    $21,128 

 

Total payments ‐       $817,098 

3. Financing through IPFS Corporation requires the signing of a separate Premium Finance 
Agreement and Certificate of Incumbency. 

 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the renewal and binding of insurance 
coverages from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019, with the option to finance selected 
premiums through CSAC‐EIA and IPFS Corporation of California in an amount not to exceed 
$1,528,599, and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Premium Finance Agreement 
with IPFS Corporation and Certificate of Incumbency. 
   
 
 



PREMIUM FINANCE AGREEMENT
License # 973 9750

A CASH PRICE
(TOTAL PREMIUMS)

$935,970.07

B CASH DOWN 
PAYMENT

$140,000.00

C PRINCIPAL BALANCE
(A MINUS B)

$795,970.07

AGENT
(Name & Place of business)
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

100 PINE ST STE 1100

SAN FRANCISCO,CA 94111-5113
(415)403-1400 FAX: (415)403-0773

INSURED
(Name & Residence or business)
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

1700 MOUNT VERNON AVE

BAKERSFIELD, CA 93306-4018
 

Account #:                                       LOAN DISCLOSURE
Additional Policies Scheduled on Page 3

Quote Number: 7504195

ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE
 The cost of your credit as a yearly rate.
 

5.750%

FINANCE CHARGE 
The dollar amount the credit will 
cost you.

$21,127.53

AMOUNT FINANCED
The amount of credit provided to 
you or on your behalf.

$795,970.07

TOTAL OF PAYMENTS
The amount you will have paid after you 
have made all payments as scheduled

$817,097.60

ITEMIZATION OF THE AMOUNT FINANCED: THE 
AMOUNT FINANCED IS FOR APPLICATION TO THE 
PREMIUMS SET FORTH IN THE SCHEDULE OF 
POLICIES UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

YOUR PAYMENT SCHEDULE WILL BE

Number Of Payments Amount Of Payments

10 $81,709.76

When Payments 
Are Due 

Beginning: MONTHLY
08/01/2018

Security: Refer to paragraph 1 below for a description of the collateral assigned to Lender to secure this loan. 
Late Charges: A late charge will be imposed on any installment in default 10 days or more. This late charge will be 5.00% of the installment due.
Prepayment:  If you pay your account off early, you may be entitled to a refund of a portion of the finance charge computed as provided in Sec. 
18635, California Statute or as otherwise allowed by law. The finance charge includes a predetermined interest rate plus a non-refundable 
service/origination fee of $25.00. See the terms below and on the next page for additional information about nonpayment, default and penalties.

The undersigned insured directs IPFS Corporation of California d/b/a/ IPFS Corporation (herein, "Lender") to pay the premiums on the policies described on the 
Schedule of Policies. In consideration of such premium payments, subject to the provisions set forth herein, the insured agrees to pay Lender at the branch office 
address shown above, or as otherwise directed by Lender, the amount stated as Total of Payments in accordance with the Payment Schedule, in each case as 
shown in the above Loan Disclosure. The named insured(s), on a joint and several basis if more than one, hereby agree to the following provisions set forth on 
pages 1 and 2 of this Agreement: 1. SECURITY: To secure payment of all amounts due under this Agreement, insured assigns Lender a security interest in all 
right, title and interest to the scheduled policies, including (but only to the extent permitted by applicable law): (a) all money that is or may be due insured 
because of a loss under any such policy that reduces the unearned premiums (subject to the interest of any applicable mortgagee or loss payee), (b) any 
unearned premium under each such policy, (c) dividends which may become due insured in connection with any such policy and (d) interests arising under a 
state guarantee fund. 2. POWER OF ATTORNEY: Insured irrevocably appoints Lender attorney-in-fact with full power of substitution and full authority upon 
default to cancel all policies above identified, receive all sums assigned to its Lender or in which it has granted Lender a security interest and to execute and 
deliver on behalf of the insured documents, instruments, forms and notices relating to the listed insurance policies in furtherance of this Agreement. 3. POLICY 
EFFECTIVE DATES: The finance charge begins to accrue as of the earliest policy effective date.

NOTICE: A. Do not sign this agreement before you read it or if it contains 
any blank space. B. You are entitled to a completely filled in copy of this 
agreement. C. Under the law, you have the right to pay in advance the full 
amount due and under certain conditions to obtain a partial refund of the 
finance charge. D. Keep your copy of this agreement to protect your legal 

rights.FOR INFORMATION CONTACT THE 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

The undersigned hereby warrants and agrees to Agent's
Representations set forth herein.

POLICY PREFIX
AND NUMBER

EFFECTIVE DATE 
OF POLICY

SCHEDULE OF POLICIES
INSURANCE COMPANY AND GENERAL AGENT

COVERAGE MINIMUM 
EARNED 
PERCENT

POL
TERM

PREMIUM

PENDING 07/01/2018 COLUMBIA CASUALTY CO EXCESS 
PROFESSION
AL LIABILITY

25.00% 12 564,000.00
Tax: 18,048.00

$935,970.07

$0.00Broker Fee:

TOTAL:

Commercial 

49 STEVENSON STREET
SUITE 1275
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105
(877)687-9826 FAX: (415)796-6156
CUSTOMER SERVICE: (800)774-8282

IPFS CORPORATION

Signature of Insured or Authorized Agent      DATE                      Signature of Agent                                           DATE

Page 1 of 3(10/17) Copyright 2017 IPFS Corporation ™ 6/11/2018 Web - CACFEE



Insured and Lender further agree that: 4. AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE DATE: This Agreement shall be effective when written acceptance is mailed to the insured 
by Lender. 5. DEFAULT AND DELINQUENT PAYMENTS: If any of the following happens insured will be in default: (a) a payment is not made when it is due, (b) 
a proceeding in bankruptcy, receivership, insolvency or similar proceeding is instituted by or against insured, or (c) insured fails to keep any promise the insured 
makes in this Agreement; provided, however, that, to the extent required by applicable law, insured may be held to be in default only upon the occurrence of an 
event described in clause (a) above. The acceptance by Lender of one or more late payments from the insured shall not estop Lender or be a waiver of the rights 
of Lender to exercise all of its rights hereunder or under applicable law in the event of any subsequent late payment. 6. CANCELLATION: Lender may cancel the 
scheduled policies after providing at least 10 days notice of its intent to cancel or any other required statutory notice if the insured does not pay any installment 
according to the terms of this Agreement or transfers any of the scheduled policies to a third party and the unpaid balance due to Lender shall be immediately 
due and payable by the insured. Lender at its option may enforce payment of this debt without recourse to the security given to Lender. 7. CANCELLATION 
CHARGES: If Lender cancels any insurance policy in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable law, then the insured shall pay Lender a 
cancellation charge equal to $15.00 or the maximum amount permitted by law. If cancellation occurs, the insured agrees to pay a finance charge on the 
outstanding indebtedness at the maximum rate authorized by applicable state law in effect on the date of cancellation until the outstanding indebtedness is paid 
in full or until such other date as required by law. 8. INSUFFICIENT FUNDS (NSF) CHARGES: If insured's check or electronic funding is dishonored for any 
reason, the insured will pay to Lender a fee of $15.00 or the maximum amount permitted by law. 9. MONEY RECEIVED AFTER CANCELLATION: Any 
payments made to Lender after Lender's Notice of Cancellation of the insurance policy(ies) has been mailed may be credited to the insured's account without any 
obligation on the part of Lender to request reinstatement of any policy. Any money Lender receives from an insurance company shall be credited to the balance 
due Lender with any surplus refunded to whomever is entitled to the money. In the event that Lender does request a reinstatement of the policy(ies) on behalf of 
the insured, such a request does not guarantee that coverage under the policy(ies) will be reinstated or continued. Only the insurance company has authority to 
reinstate the policy(ies). The insured agrees that Lender has no liability to the insured if the policy(ies) is not reinstated and Lender may charge a reinstatement 
fee where permitted up to the maximum amount allowed by law. 10. ASSIGNMENT: The insured agrees not to assign this Agreement or any policy listed hereon 
or any interest therein (except for the interest of mortgagees or loss payees), without the written consent of Lender, and that Lender may sell, transfer and assign 
its rights hereunder or under any policy without the consent of the insured, and that all agreements made by the insured hereunder and all rights and benefits 
conferred upon Lender shall inure to the benefit of Lender's successors and assigns (and any assignees thereof). 11. INSURANCE AGENT OR BROKER: The 
insured agrees that the insurance agent or broker soliciting the policies or through whom the policies were issued is not the agent of Lender; and the agent or 
broker named on the front of this Agreement is neither authorized by Lender to receive installment payments under this Agreement nor to make representations, 
orally or in writing, to the insured on Lender's behalf (except to the extent expressly required by applicable law). As and where permissible by law, Lender may 
compensate your insurance agent/broker for assisting in arranging the financing of your insurance premiums. If you have any questions about this compensation 
you should contact your agent/broker. 12. FINANCING NOT A CONDITION: The law does not require a person to enter into a premium finance agreement as a 
condition of the purchase of insurance. 13. COLLECTION COSTS: Insured agrees to pay attorney fees and other collection costs to Lender to the extent 
permitted by law if this Agreement is referred to an attorney or collection agency who is not a salaried employee of Lender, to collect any money insured owes 
under this Agreement. 14. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: The insured agrees that Lender's liability to the insured, any other person or entity for breach of any of 
the terms of this Agreement for the wrongful or improper exercise of any of its powers under this Agreement shall be limited to the amount of the principal 
balance outstanding, except in the event of Lender' gross negligence or willful misconduct. Insured recognizes and agrees that Lender is a lender only and not an 
insurance company and that in no event does Lender assume any liability as an insurer hereunder or otherwise. 15. CLASSIFICATION AND FORMATION OF 
AGREEMENT: This Agreement is and will be a general intangible and not an instrument (as those terms are used in the Uniform Commercial Code) for all 
purposes. Any electronic signature or electronic record may be used in the formation of this Agreement, and the signatures of the insured and agent and the 
record of this Agreement may be in electronic form (as those terms are used in the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act). A photocopy, a facsimile or other paper 
or electronic record of this Agreement shall have the same legal effect as a manually signed copy. 16. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES: The insured 
represents that (a) the insured is not insolvent or presently the subject of any insolvency proceeding (or if the insured is a debtor of bankruptcy, the bankruptcy 
court has authorized this transaction), (b) if the insured is not an individual, that the signatory is authorized to sign this Agreement on behalf of the insured, (c) all 
parties responsible for payment of the premium are named and have signed this Agreement, and (d) there is no term or provision in any of the scheduled policies 
that would require Lender to notify or get the consent of any third party to effect cancellation of any such policy. 17. ADDITIONAL PREMIUM FINANCING: 
Insured authorizes Lender to make additional advances under this premium finance agreement at the request of either the Insured or the Insured’s agent with the 
Insured’s express authorization, and subject to the approval of Lender, for any additional premium on any policy listed in the Schedule of Policies due to changes 
in the insurable risk. If Lender consents to the request for an additional advance, Lender will send Insured a revised payment amount ("Revised Payment 
Amount"). Insured agrees to pay the Revised Payment Amount, which may include additional finance charges on the newly advanced amount, and 
acknowledges that Lender will maintain its security interest in the Policy with full authority to cancel all policies and receive all unearned premium if Insured fails 
to pay the Revised Payment Amount. 18. PRIVACY: Our privacy policy may be found at https://www.ipfs.com/Privacy.aspx. 19. ENTIRE DOCUMENT / 
GOVERNING LAW: This document is the entire Agreement between Lender and the insured and can only be changed in writing and signed by both parties 
except that the insured authorizes Lender to insert or correct on this Agreement, if omitted or incorrect, the insurer's name and the policy number(s). Lender is 
also authorized to correct patent errors and omissions in this Agreement. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is found to be illegal or unenforceable, 
it shall be deemed severed from the remaining provisions, which shall remain in full force and effect. The laws of the State of California will govern this 
Agreement. 20. AUTHORIZATION: The insurance company(ies) and their agents, any intermediaries and the agent / broker named in this Agreement and their 
successors and assigns are hereby authorized and directed by insured to provide Lender with full and complete information regarding all financed insurance 
policy(ies), including without limitation the status and calculation of unearned premiums, and Lender is authorized and directed to provide such parties with full 
and complete information and documentation regarding the financing of such insurance policy(ies), including a copy of this Agreement and any related notices. 
21. WAIVER OF SOVERIGN IMMUNITY: The insured expressly waives any sovereign immunity available to the insured, and agrees to be subject to the laws as 
set forth in this Agreement (and the jurisdiction of federal and/or state courts) for all matters relating to the collection and enforcement of amounts owed under 
this Agreement and the security interest in the scheduled policies granted hereby.
                                                                                AGENT/BROKER REPRESENTATIONS
The agent/broker executing this, and any future, agreements represents, warrants and agrees: (1) installment payments totaling $0.00 and all applicable down 
payment(s) have been received from the insured in immediately available funds, (2) the insured has received a copy of this Agreement; if the agent/broker has 
signed this Agreement on the insured's behalf, the insured has expressly authorized the agent/broker to sign this Agreement on its behalf or, if the insured has 
signed, to the best of the undersigned’s knowledge and belief such signature is genuine, (3) the policies are in full force and effect and the information in the 
Schedule of Policies including the premium amounts is correct, (4) no direct company bill, audit, or reporting form policies or policies subject to retrospective 
rating or to minimum earned premium are included, except as indicated, and the deposit of provisional premiums is not less than anticipated premiums to be 
earned for the full term of the policies, (5) the policies can be cancelled by the insured or Lender (or its successors and assigns) on 10 days notice and the 
unearned premiums will be computed on the standard short rate or pro rata table except as indicated, (6) there are no bankruptcy, receivership, or insolvency 
proceedings affecting the insured, (7) to hold Lender, its successors and assigns harmless against any loss or expense (including attorney fees) resulting from 
these representations or from errors, omissions or inaccuracies of agent/broker in preparing this Agreement, (8) to pay the down payment and any funding 
amounts received from Lender under this Agreement to the insurance company or general agent (less any commissions where applicable), (9) to hold in trust for 
Lender or its assigns any payments made or credited to the insured through or to agent/broker directly or indirectly, actually or constructively by the insurance 
companies and to pay the monies, as well as the unearned commissions to Lender or its assigns upon demand to satisfy the outstanding indebtedness of the 
insured, (10) all material information concerning the insured and the financed policies necessary for Lender to cancel such policies and receive the unearned 
premium has been disclosed to Lender, (11) no term or provision of any financed policy requires Lender to notify or get the consent of any third party to effect 
cancellation of such policy, and (12) to promptly notify Lender in writing if any information on this Agreement becomes inaccurate.

Page 2 of 3(10/17) Copyright 2017 IPFS Corporation ™ 6/11/2018 Web - CACFEE



POLICY PREFIX
AND NUMBER

EFFECTIVE DATE 
OF POLICY INSURANCE COMPANY AND GENERAL AGENT

COVERAGE MINIMUM 
EARNED 
PERCENT

POL
TERM

PREMIUM

PENDING 07/01/2018 NATIONAL FIRE & MARINE INS CO
MED PRO

EXCESS 
PROFESSION
AL LIABILITY

25.00% 12 86,300.00
Tax: 2,761.60

PENDING 07/01/2018 ACE PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE C LIABILITY 0.000% 12 6,019.00

PENDING 07/01/2018 AIG SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY DIRECTORS 
& OFFICERS

0.000% 12 104,424.00
Tax: 3,341.57

PENDING 07/01/2018 ILLINOIS UNION INSURANCE CO POLLUTION 100.0% 12 11,872.00
Tax: 379.90

PENDING 07/01/2018 ACE AMERICAN INSURANCE CO LIABILITY 0.000% 12 579.00

PENDING 07/01/2018 SAFETY NATIONAL CASUALTY CORPORATIO WORKMENS 
COMP

0.000% 12 130,463.00

PENDING 07/01/2018 FEDERAL INSURANCE CO LAWYERS 
PROF 

LIABILITY

0.000% 12 1,764.00

PENDING 07/01/2018 HUDSON INSURANCE CO FIDUCIARY 0.000% 12 6,018.00

$935,970.07TOTAL:

SCHEDULE OF POLICIES
(continued)

Account #:                                       Quote Number: 7504195

AGENT
(Name & Place of business)
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC

100 PINE ST STE 1100

SAN FRANCISCO,CA 94111-5113
(415)403-1400 FAX: (415)403-0773

INSURED
(Name & Residence or business)
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

1700 MOUNT VERNON AVE

BAKERSFIELD, CA 93306-4018
 

Page 3 of 3(10/17) Copyright 2017 IPFS Corporation ™ 6/11/2018 Web - CACFEE



CERTIFICATE OF INCUMBENCY 
 
 
I, MONA A. ALLEN, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected or appointed and acting 
Secretary or Clerk of the Kern County Hospital Authority (Insured), that I have custody 
of the records of such entity, and that each individual named below is, and was as of the 
date each individual affixed his or her signature to the Premium Finance Agreement, 
between the Insured and IPFS Corporation of California (IPFS) (the Agreement), a duly 
elected or appointed officer of such entity holding the title or office set forth opposite his 
or her name below.  I further certify that: (i) the signature set opposite each individual’s 
name is a true and authentic signature of that individual and (ii) each such individual 
has (and had on the date each such individual affixed his or her signature to the 
Agreement) the authority on behalf of the Insured to enter into the Agreement. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Signature 
 
Russell V. Judd 
Chief Executive Officer 
Kern County Hospital Authority 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have duly executed this Incumbency Certificate and affixed 
Insured’s seal hereto this _____ day of __________, 2018. 

 
____________________________________ 
Mona A. Allen, Authority Board Coordinator 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016‐042 with Trans‐West Security Services, Inc.  

 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to Sign 
 
Summary:   
 

Kern  Medical  requests  your  Board  approve  the  proposed  amendment  with  Trans‐West  Security 
Services,  Inc.,  for  management  of  Security  Services  and  provision  of  security  officers  to  cover  the 
campuses  at  Kern Medical  and  1111  Columbus  St.    This  amendment  extends  the  term  by  2  years, 
through June 30, 2020, and increases the not‐to‐exceed amount by $3,200,000.  The increased not‐to‐
exceed amount is due to increased security manager costs and increased rates to be paid to security 
officers in relation to State of California minimum wage increases. 
 



























 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed approval of Medical Staff policy and procedure regarding E/M Service 
Documentation Provided by Students 
  
Recommended Action: Approve  
  
Summary:    
  

The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) revised the Medicare Claims Processing Manual, 
Chapter 12, Section 100.1.1, effective January 1, 2018, to update the policy on Evaluation and 
Management (E/M) documentation to allow the teaching physician to verify in the medical record any 
student documentation of components of E/M services, rather than re‐documenting the work.  CMS 
implemented the change on March 5, 2018.   
 
The Medical Executive Committee approved the policy on June 5, 2018, and recommends that your 
Board approve the policy to reflect these changes, as required by the Medical Staff Bylaws. 

 



 

KERN MEDICAL CENTER 
MEDICAL STAFF  

Policy and Procedure 
E/M Service Documentation Provided by Students 

 
Approvals: 
 

Medical Executive Committee: June 5, 2018 
Board of Governors: June 20, 2018   

 Effective Date:   July 1, 2018 
Review Date:   

 
I. PURPOSE:    

 
To comply with the Medicare Claims Processing Manual (Chapter 12, Section 100.1.1) 
regarding Evaluation and Management (E/M) documentation to allow the teaching physician to 
verify in the medical record any student documentation of components of E/M services, rather 
than re-documenting the work. 
 
II. POLICY STATEMENT:  
 
Clear and concise medical record documentation is critical to providing patients with quality care 
and is required for Kern Medical Center to receive accurate and timely payment for furnished 
services.   
 
III. PROCEDURE:  
 
Any contribution and participation of a student to the performance of a billable service (other 
than the review of systems and/or past family/social history which are not separately billable but 
are taken as part of an E/M service) must be performed in the physical presence of a teaching 
physician or physical presence of a resident in a service meeting the requirements set forth in this 
section for teaching physician billing. 
 
Students may document services in the medical record.  However, the teaching physician must 
verify in the medical record all student documentation or findings, including history, physical 
exam and/or medical decision-making.  The teaching physician must personally perform (or re-
perform) the physical exam and medical decision making activities of the E/M service being 
billed, but may verify any student documentation of them in the medical record, rather than re-
documenting this work. 
 
IV: REFERENCE:  
 
Medicare Claims Processing Manual, Chapter 12, Section 100.1.1 
(Rev. 3971, Issued: 02-02-18, Effective: 01-01-18, Implementation: 03-05-18) 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Rose Bauer, PharmD 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical is requesting approval to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Rose Bauer, as 
Extra Help Clinical Pharmacist, for the period ending June 30, 2019, or 960 hours, whichever occurs first, 
effective July 1, 2018. 
 
The Public Employee Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) sets forth post-retirement service and employment 
requirements for all KCERA retirees returning to work for a KCERA employer.  The authority is a designated 
KCERA employer.  Under PEPRA service requirements, a retiree may be reemployed up to a maximum of 960 
hours per fiscal year, subject to approval by your Board.   
 
In addition to the service requirements, Dr. Bauer is also subject to the employment requirements under PEPRA, 
which provide that a retired public employee is not eligible for post-retirement employment for a period of 180 
days following the date of retirement unless the appointment is necessary to fill a critically needed position 
before 180 days have passed and the appointment has been approved by your Board.  The appointment may 
not be placed on the consent agenda. 
 
Dr. Bauer retired effective January 19, 2018.  Dr. Bauer has worked at Kern Medical for over 23 years, most of 
that time as a home health pharmacist, but also over 7 years as a staff pharmacist in the inpatient pharmacy.  In 
addition to the regular staffing roles and responsibilities, Dr. Bauer has special quality assignments and has the 
requisite experience and skill set needed to perform the work for which she is being reemployed.  Kern Medical 
has a critical need to reemploy Dr. Bauer immediately, to ensure there is sufficient coverage of the quality tasks 
required for reporting by The Joint Commission, California Department of Public Health, Centers for Medicare & 
Medicaid Services, and the Board of Pharmacy.  Currently Kern Medical has eight full-time staff pharmacists who 
cover a very busy service, which has been exacerbated by one vacancy and two leave of absences within the 
department.  Two employees are still in training, which Dr. Bauer assists.  Several employees are being allocated 
to the new electronic health record implementation, which has made the need to retain trained personnel 
critical in ensuring continued excellent patient care.  Experienced pharmacists are in short supply in Kern 
County, and Kern County remains a difficult region to recruit highly qualified pharmacists.  The current staffing 
levels within the department will be strained to maintain patient safety without the interim reemployment of 
Dr. Bauer.  As such, Dr. Bauer will be reemployed for a limited duration to fill voids in staffing, while Kern 
Medical continues to train the new-hires, and recruit for another full time pharmacist.     
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the reemployment of Rose Bauer, as Extra Help Staff 
Pharmacist, effective July 1, 2018. 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Comments Regarding Budget Variances for Operating Expenses – April 2018 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary:   
 
The following items have budget variances for the month of April 2018:  
 
Indigent Funding: 
Each  month,  Kern Medical  only  recognizes  ninety‐five  percent  of  the  total  accrued  amount  receivable  from 
indigent  funding.    This  is  a  conservative  approach  that  reserves  five  percent  of  the  total  receivable  indigent 
funding to account for the possibility that some funding could be taken back by the funding sources later due to 
changes  in calculations or  in the method that funds are allocated among California’s public hospitals.   For the 
month  of  April  2018,  a  true‐up  entry  was made  to  recognize  $1,156,440  of  Global  Payment  Program  (GPP) 
revenue that pertained to the prior years.  
 
Other Revenue: 
Other  revenue  has  an  unfavorable  budget  variance  for  April  due  to  an  adjustment  for  over  accrued Medical 
Education Tuition in prior months. 
  
Registry Nurses: 
Registry nurses expense has an unfavorable budget variance on both a month to date and a year to date basis.  
Kern  Medical  continues  to  rely  on  contracted  nurse  staffing  to  supplement  the  nursing  departments  while 
aggressively trying to recruit full time employed nurses. 
 

Medical Fees: 
Medical fees have an unfavorable budget variance for the month of April in part because of the opening of Kern 
Medical’s new orthopedic hand center and the corresponding fees paid to the orthopedic surgeons Dr. Bowen 
and Dr. Malerich.  There were also increased Locum Tenens fees for trauma coverage. 
 
Other Professional Fees: 
Other professional fees have a favorable budget variance for the month of April.  The creation of a Kern Medical 
legal department has substantially decreased legal fees from outside law firms and there are no longer legal fees 
billed  to  Kern  Medical  from  the  County  Counsel.    Kern  Medical  also  no  longer  accrues  for  AMF  marketing 
expenses and no longer accrues for Mercer human resources consulting.  Both of these vendors were budgeted 
in the FY 2018 budget. 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

Supplies Expense: 
Supplies expense has an unfavorable budget variance for the month of April due in part to a large order of new 
Dell computers that was under accrued for  in prior month.   Surgical and medical care supplies expenses were 
also higher than average for the month.   Pharmaceutical expenses continue to run higher than budget, but at 
the year‐to‐date trend. 
 
Purchased Services: 
Purchased  services have an unfavorable budget  variance  for April  because of  being under‐accrued  for Health 
Advocates  expenses  in  prior  months  while  contract  terms  with  the  vendor  were  being  negotiated.    Health 
Advocates are engaged  to assist  the Admitting  staff with  checking Medi‐Cal  eligibility of  patients and helping 
patients qualify for Medi‐Cal.  They have been very successful and their efforts have resulted in a large increase 
of Kern Medical patients qualifying for Medi‐Cal.  There is also an increase in purchased services expenses due to 
the implementation of the Cerner software. 
 
Other Expenses: 
Other expenses are over budget for the month of April due to an increase in office rent for several new medical 
office building leases that were not included in the FY 2018 budget.  
 

 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ FINANCIAL REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – APRIL 2018

JUNE 2018



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



Slide 7



Slide 8



Slide 9



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
June 20, 2018 
 
Subject:  Kern County Hospital Authority, Chief Executive Officer Report 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary: 
 
The Chief Executive Officer has provided the attached 3‐month trend Analysis: Volume and Strategic 
Indicators for Kern Medical 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ VOLUMES REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – APRIL 2018

JUNE 2018



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on June 20, 2018, to discharge its responsibility to evaluate and improve 
the quality of care rendered by health facilities and health practitioners. The closed 
session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health 
and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on June 20, 2018, the premature disclosure of which would create a 
substantial probability of depriving the authority of a substantial economic benefit or 
opportunity.  The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on 
authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) –  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold a closed 
session on June 20, 2018, to consider: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee organizations: 
Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (Government Code Section 54957.6)  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
June 20, 2018, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending litigation, 
because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the position 
of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Arthur Gray v. County 
of Kern, et al., United States District Court Case No. 1:14-cv-00204-LJO-JLT –  
 

 
 




